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2025

)

4,009,087.65| 111.37 | 446,505,408.87 | 126.68 | 507,871,223.50| 99.5

2025 10
872
10
0
FNMA TBA 6.0% JUN 30YR 6.00% | 2055 6 12 16.2%
0
FNMA TBA 6.5% JUN 30YR 6.50% | 2055 6 12 10.6%
0
FNMA TBA 5.5% MAY 30YR 5505 | 2055 5 13 5 0%
0
FNMA TBA 6.0% MAY 30YR 6.00% | 2055 5 13 3.2%
U S TREASURY BOND 4.63% | 2054 5 15 2.1%
0
FNMA TBA 5.0% MAY 30YR 5.00% | 2055 5 13 2.0%
GNMA I'l1 TBA 4._0% MAY
0 0
30YR JVBO 4.00% | 2055 5 20 1.8%
0
FNMA TBA 3.0% JUN 30YR 3.00% | 2055 6 12 1.7%
U S TREASURY INFLATE
! 0
PROT BD 1.88% | 2034 7 15 1.6%
FNMA PASS THRU 30YR
0 0
4SD8256 4.00% | 2052 10 1 1.4%

2025

2025
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2024 2025

2020 12 31 457,290,093.19 65,195,849 104.12 14,844
2021 12 31 545,179,441.44 77,726,233 105.35 15,020
2022 12 31 384,546,011.27 54,824,725 100.36 14,308
2023 12 31 426,540,497.45 60,811,879 106.88 15,238
2024 12 31 473,681,562.96 67,532,780 112.91 16,098
2024 427,942,510.26 61,011,764 109.52 15,614
427,858,845.05 60,999,836 109.77 15,650

432,908,621.02 61,719,782 111.31 15,869

437,214,017.95 62,333,603 111.97 15,964

448,641,267.18 63,962,785 113.07 16,120

10 452,040,781.53 64,447,454 112.09 15,981

11 461,488,248.43 65,794,380 113.31 16,155

12 473,681,562.96 67,532,780 112.91 16,098

2025 485,673,234.62 69,242,433 113.97 16,249
501,632,762.70 71,517,783 115.33 16,443

515,580,561.47 73,506,321 115.55 16,474

510,636,992.37 72,801,516 115.33 16,443
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2019 4,642,188 228,387 4,413,801
(4,642,188) (228,387) (4,413,801)

2020 12

2021 1,907,133 1,134,881 5,186,053
(1,907,133) (1,134,881) (5,186,053)

2021 12

2002 430,245 1,783,381 3,832,917
(430,245) (1,783,381) (3,832,917)

2022 12

2003 666,649 508,406 3,991,160
(666,649) (508, 406) (3,991,160)

2023 12

2024 565,801 361,820 4,195,141
565,801 361,820 4,195,141

2024

12
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
usb usb
20 5 470,831,106 67,126,391 424,038,087 60,455,110
2.1 4,665,455 665,154 4,219,403 601,560
2.10 3 6,880,158 980,904 1,875,238 267,353
2.4 502,665 71,665 185,465 26,442
- - 102,635 14,633

482,879,384 68,844,114 430,420,828 61,365,097

2.4 6,807,419 970,534 1,855,962 264,605

8.2C 775,911 110,622 709,855 101,204

8.2B 633,403 90,304 579,178 82,573

2.10 3 503,066 71,722 185,456 26,440

137,259 19,569 137,259 19,569

104,550 14,906 103,380 14,739

8.1C 98,640 14,063 89,835 12,808
8.1A 47,389 6,756 44,371 6,326

8.1E 38,584 5,501 30,762 4,386
8.1B 19,069 2,719 63,392 9,038
8.2E 11,516 1,642 10,531 1,501
8.1D 10,926 1,558 4,213 601

452 64 621 89

9,188,184 1,309,959 3,814,815 543,878

473,691,200 67,534,154 426,606,013 60,821,219
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
usD usD
FVTPL @
2.11 153,593 21,898 148,040 21,106
211 7 5,805,427 827,680 5,153,185 734,690
24,670,737 3,517,307 27,253,949 3,885,596
2.2 211 7
30,629,757 4,366,884 32,555,174 4,641,391
8.2C 2,926,196 417,188 2,767,615 394,579
8.2B 2,402,101 342,468 2,270,227 323,666
8.1C 1,091,864 155,667 1,031,921 147,121
8.1A 262,047 37,360 247,661 35,309
8.1D 169,375 24,148 4,128 589
8.1B 70,079 9,991 137,094 19,545
8.2E 43,674 6,227 41,277 5,885
8.1E 43,010 6,132 35,796 5,103
18,203 2,595 54,673 7,795
1,590 227 2,070 295
7,028,139 1,002,002 6,592,462 939,887
23,601,618 3,364,883 25,962,712 3,701,504
23,601,618 3,364,883 25,962,712 3,701,504
@ FVTPL
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
USD
2022 12 31 384,665,398 54,841,746
68,544,330 9,772,365
2.8 (52,566,427) (7.,494,395)
25,962,712 3,701,504
2023 12 31 426,606,013 60,821,219
63,138,431 9,001, 646
2.8 (39,654,862) (5,653,594)
23,601,618 3,364,883
2024 12 31 473,691,200 67,534,154
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
usD UsD
23,601,618 3,364,883 25,962,712 3,701,504
(62,492,199) (8,909,513) (67,857,855) (9,674,494)
46,175,344 6,583,219 59,968,347 8,549,687
(5,805,427)  (827,680) (5,153,185)  (734,690)
(24,670,737)  (3,517,307) (27,253,949) (3,885,596)
(317, 200) (45,223) 56,313 8,029
102,635 14,633 (56,465) (8,050)
4,951,457 705,929 1,055,593 150,496
(@) 104,302 14,870 209,824 29,915
(18,350,207) (2,616,189) (13,068,665) (1,863,200)
58,133,511 8,288,005 67,477,238 9,620,230
(39,337,252) (5,608,312) (52,622,572) (7,502,400)
18,796,259 2,679,783 14,854,666 2,117,830
446,052 63,594 1,786,001 254,630
2.1 4,219,403 601,560 2,433,402 346,930
2.1 4,665,455 665,154 4,219,403 601,560
153,593 21,898 148,040 21,106
()
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
1.
PIMCO 2013
12 2 UBS
i
2019 5 31
2019 7 9
2014 1 22
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
UBS
2024 10 3 UBS AG UBS AG
2024 10 3 UBS
1 A
A A usb
$

B USD
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
1
2
B USD usp

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

94.1 100.0

1 - B USD
B USD
2163 12 1

Q) 3

)]
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
1
1 31
1
1
UBS Group AG UBS 2023 3 19
FINMA Credit Suisse Group AG
2023 6 12 UBS AG AG
AG AG UBS AG
1 AG
AG
AG
AG
2024 5 31
2024 2 1 UBS
2024 3 1
2024 2 28
11 UBS 11
2025 4 29
2.
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS

83/239



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
2024 12 31
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL
FVOCl  IFRS 9
FVTPL
FVTPL

)

i) SPPI

i) SPPI

i)

iii) FVTPL

SPP1

SPPI
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ECL

ECL

FVTPL

12
ECL
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2023 1 1 IAS 1 IFRS 2
(significant) (material)
2024 12 31
2024 1 1
2.1
3
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 2023
$ 9,637 $ 11,968
4,655,818 4,207,435

$ 4,665,455 $ 4,219,403
2.2
Q)

FVTPL
2024 12 31 2024 12 31
$ 470,831,106 $ 418,662,063
2023 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 424,038,087 $ 396,539,781
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

®

©

©

®
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®

NAV

(i) NAV D)

2.3

2024 12

2.4

)

12

B 100,000

31 2023 12 31

88/239



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2024 12 31

2.5

2.6

Q)

®

2.7
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2.8

IAS 32

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2.9

2.10

2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

2.12

2023 12 31

FVTPL

FVTPL

2063 12 2
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

IAS 12

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

2.13

1 100
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2 5
2024 12 31 1
1
A $ 473,691,200 4,195,141 $ 112.9143
2023 12 31 1
1
A $ 426,606,013 3,991,160 $ 106.8877
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 1

100
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
5

1 2.00%
1 2 1.60%
2 3 1.20%
3 4 0.80%
2 5 0.40%
5

2024 12 31

A $ 63,138,431 $ (39,654,862)
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2023 12 31
A $ 68,544,330 $ (52,566,427)
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2024 12 31
A 3,991,160 565,801 (361,820) 4,195,141
2022 12 31 2023 12 31
A 3,832,917 666,649 (508, 406) 3,991,160
1
4.
5.

5.1
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

Q)
®

IMF
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
(i)
3
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 50

23,279
21,037
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31 1
4,708,311 4,240,381 1

2024 12 31

$ 2,335,019
367,598
2,694,312
20,851,190
10,748,297
1,127,569
12,945,327
3,303,528
1,335,769
1,730,494
7,843,751
10,902,217
2,343,922
4,328,075
1,999,058
4,157,092
5,232,027
5,057,976
4,274,260
386,648
32,075,179 .3%
483,103,067 . 5%
$ 619,142,375 123.7%

.5%
.1%
.5%
.2%
-1%
-2%
6%
-T%
.3%
.3%
.6%
.2%
.5%
.9%
4%
.8%
.0%
-0%
-9%
-1%

0O OO FP P OOOONPEPE OOOMNMNODNPMOOO

©
(2]
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

2023 12 31

$ 1,271,458
443,751
302,491

12,347,566
1,637,973
1,941,729

11,568,179
1,099,218

10,689,590
5,426,580
1,750,548
1,322,849
8,830,072
4,230,234
1,374,058
1,752,014

142,655

1,137,584

71,000

5,552,809
4,403,969
5,559,879
3,947,800 .9%
37,537,096 -9%
480,215,960 113.3%

$ 604,557,062 142.6%

.3%
-1%
-1%
.9%
4%
.5%
.T%
-3%
.5%
.3%
4%
3%
-1%
-0%
.3%
4%
.0%
3%
-0%*
-3%
.0%
.3%

0O O P P P OO OO OFRPNOORFPNMNMNODMNOONMNOOO

*0.0 0.05

®
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2024 12 31

2023 12 31

A

2024 12

31

2023 12 31

Aaa
Aal
Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bal
Ba2
Ba3
B1
B2
B3
Caal
Caa2
Caa3
Ca

NR
WR

19.
-4%
-T%
0%
-9%
-4%
-9%
-T%
5%
3%
-T%
0%
2%
0%
-9%
-T%
-1%
5%
.8%
-1%
.8%
-4%
.6%

P NP OO FPONPFRPFPOBRDNWMNMNDNDNDNIEREOLPR

[}
o @

1%

123.

/S&P/
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

2023 12 31

*
=

N
(e}

1%
.6%
-3%
.3%
-9%
.6%
.5%
.5%
-1%
-4%
.3%
2%
4%
2%
-T%
.3%
4%
4%
4%
.T%
-1%
NR -5%
WR 0.7%

142.6%

Aaa
Aal
Aa2
Aa3
Al
A2
A3
Baal
Baa2
Baa3
Bal
Ba2
Ba3
B1
B2
B3
Caal
Caa2
Caa3
Ca

N DN FP ODNDNMNDDNPEPEDNOMNMNDNDNDNDBAEDNMDMNDNOO PP

~
(2]

* /S&P/

©
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2024 12 31 1 1 3
$ 6,807,419 $ - $ 6,807,419
775,911 - 775,911
633,403 - 633,403
503,066 - 503,066
137,259 - 137,259
104,550 - 104,550
98,640 - 98,640
47,389 - 47,389
38,584 - 38,584
19,069 - 19,069
11,516 - 11,516
10,926 - 10,926
452 - 452
$ 9,188,184 $ - $ 9,188,184
2023 12 31 1 1 3
$ 1,855,962 $ - $ 1,855,962
709,855 - 709,855
579,178 - 579,178
185,456 - 185,456
137,259 - 137,259
103,380 - 103,380
89,835 - 89,835
63,392 - 63,392
44,371 - 44,371
30,762 - 30,762
10,531 - 10,531
4,213 - 4,213
621 - 621
$ 3,814,815 $ - $ 3,814,815
15
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

()

5.2

®

®

103/239



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2024 12 31

©

©

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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PIMCO

2024 12 31

®

2024 12 31

®

©

Q)
2163 12 1

5.3
IFRS 13

105/239



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2024 12 31
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
2024 12 31
2 3 2024 12 31
B
$ - $ 470,831,106 $ - $ 470,831,106
$ - $ 470,831,106 $ - $ 470,831,106
2023 12 31
2 3 2023 12 31
B
$ - $ 424,038,087 $ - $ 424,038,087
$ - $ 424,038,087 $ - $ 424,038,087
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 1 2 3
2
2
NAV
2
2 2024 12 31 2023
12 31 2
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
(i) 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2
5.4
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 500,457,648
423,993,745 2024 12 31 711,496,975
619,142,375
68,709,526 256,467
1,294,235 22,558,996 393,537
71,087
2023 12 31 638,945,247
604,557,062 19,920,471
1,927,462 1,172,976 17,880,715
39,008 273,555
1
6.

100

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
7.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
$ 5,805,427 $ 5,153,185
$ 5,805,427 $ 5,153,185
$ 24,670,737 $ 27,253,949
$ 24,670,737 $ 27,253,949
8.
8.1
Q)
5 0.07 10 0.06
10 0.05 3,750 2024 12
31 2023 12 31 2024 12
31 2023 12 31
®
0.025 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
©
0.25
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2024
12 31 2023 12 31
©
0.01 2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
®
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
8.2
Q)
10,000 2024
12 31 2023 12 31 2024 12 31
2023 12 31
®
0.55
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
©
0.12
0.55
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
31

Actual /365
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PIMCO
2024 12 31
©
5,000
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
®
0.01
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
9.
10
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10.
2025 4 29
2025 1 1 2025 4 29 45,770,691 19,766,082
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2024 10 31

652,975 93,095
0 0

417 59
3,381 482

0 0
14,377 2,050
70 10

7 1

0 0

TBA 201,856 28,779
819 117
3,872 552
877,774 125,144
0 0

0 0
13,873 1,978
542 77
1,902 271
5,146 734

0 0

444 63

TBA 403,003 57,456
4 1

0 0

1,990 284
225 32

49 7

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

397 57
427,575 60,959
450,199 64,185
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676,137 96,397
0 0
66 9
14,183 2,022
(440) (63)
14,600 2,082
450,199 64,185
3,684
122.20 17,422



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 10 31
22,791 3,249
* 200 29
532 76
23,523 3,354

[Inst]

0 0
430 61
7 1
437 62
23,086 3,291
3,958 564
0 0
1,523 217
(161) (23)
293 42
5,613 800
23,188 3,306
0 0
(8,864) (1,264)
552 79
322 0
15,198 2,167
20,811 2,967
43,897 6,258
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2024 10 31
23,086 3,291

5,613 800

15,198 2,167

43,897 6,258

. (4,649) (663)

39,248 5,596

410,951 58,589

450,199 64,185

12
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2024 10 31
110.14 15,703
() 6.36 907
5.70 813
12.06 1,719
0.00 0.00
122.20 17,422
©) 10.95
450,199 64,185
0.10
0.00
5.39

0.01

118/239



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 10 31
145.0%
1.8%
Altice France S.A.
10.156% due 08/15/2028 $ 498 $ 400
AmSurg LLC
11.078% due 07/20/2026 737 737
13.203% due 11/03/2028 2,594 2,633
Envalior Finance GmbH
10.085% due 03/29/2030 1,182 1,130
Lealand Finance Co. BV
3.000-5.800% due 12/31/2027 4 2
7.800% due 06/30/2027 28 16
Poseidon Bidco SAS
8.345% due 03/13/2030 EUR 700 565
Sigma Holdco BV
8.145-8.180% due 01/03/2028 1,000 1,087
SVF 11 Finco (Cayman) LP
6.000% due 12/23/2025 $ 1,111 1,094
Syniverse Holdings LLC
11.604% due 05/13/2027 471 470
8,134
$8,122
21.0%
13.0%

Adler Financing Sarl
12.500% due 12/31/2028 (b) EUR 3,145 3,530
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena SpA
1.875% due 01/09/2026 1,063 1,135
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya ArgentariaS.A.
5.381% due 03/13/2029 $ 1,800 1,829
Banco Santander S_A.
4.250% due 04/11/2027 2,200 2,168
5.552% due 03/14/2028 800 809
6.527% due 11/07/2027 1,600 1,654
Bank of America Corp.
3.419% due 12/20/2028 2,300 2,206
Bank of Montreal
5.810% due 09/10/2027 400 401
Bank of Nova Scotia
4.404% due 09/08/2028 400 396
5.914% due 09/08/2028 400 401
Barclays PLC
4.837% due 09/10/2028 200 199
6.224% due 05/09/2034 784 821
6.496% due 09/13/2027 1,200 1,233
Bevco Lux Sarl
1.000% due 01/16/2030 EUR 2,100 1,997
BPCE S.A.
6.612% due 10/19/2027 $ 4,200 4,321
CaixaBank S.A.
6.684% due 09/13/2027 600 618
CoStar Group, Inc.
2.800% due 07/15/2030 300 262
Credit Agricole S_A.
6.122% due 09/11/2028 250 252
6.316% due 10/03/2029 2,000 2,093
Credit Suisse Group AG AT1 Claim (c)

480 61
Deutsche Bank AG
4.999% due 09/11/2030 200 197
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
6.484% due 10/24/2029 1,200 1,266
HSBC Holdings PLC
2.848% due 06/04/2031 2,035 1,805
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2024 10 31
ING Groep NV
3.500% due 09/03/2030 EUR 1,900 2,064
Intesa Sanpaolo SpA
7.200% due 11/28/2033 $ 200 221
Iridium Capital PLC
9.250% due 06/18/2029 EUR 400 $ 453
JPMorgan Chase & Co.
6.070% due 10/22/2027 $ 900 923
Lloyds Banking Group PLC
3.750% due 01/11/2027 600 588
5.462% due 01/05/2028 500 506
Morgan Stanley
3.790% due 03/21/2030 EUR 2,000 2,206
Morgan Stanley Bank N.A.
5.783% due 07/14/2028 $ 2,200 2,209
Nationwide Bui lding Society
4.500% due 11/01/2026 EUR 1,500 1,678
NatWest Group PLC
4.892% due 05/18/2029 $ 500 497
5.583% due 03/01/2028 600 609
6.249% due 03/01/2028 300 303
6.367% due 11/15/2028 1,100 1,109
Royall Bank of Canada
4.510% due 10/18/2027 1,600 1,595
SBA Tower Trust
4.831% due 10/15/2029 400 391
Societe Generale S_A.
6.447% due 01/12/2027 1,200 1,215
Suci Second Investment Co.
4.375% due 09/10/2027 2,000 1,974
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
4.450% due 09/10/2027 200 199
5.910% due 09/10/2027 200 202
Titanium 21 Bondco Sarl
6.250% due 01/14/2031 (b) EUR 4,709 1,853
UBS Group AG
3.126% due 08/13/2030 $ 200 183
4.194% due 04/01/2031 500 478
5.428% due 02/08/2030 400 406
6.246% due 09/22/2029 800 836
6.327% due 12/22/2027 800 824
6.373% due 07/15/2026 1,050 1,058
6.442% due 08/11/2028 1,250 1,298
Uniti Group LP
6.500% due 02/15/2029 456 393
10.500% due 02/15/2028 601 641
VICI Properties LP
4.625% due 06/15/2025 1,249 1,243
Wells Fargo & Co.
6.303% due 10/23/2029 700 734
58,543

4.0%
Bayer U.S. Finance LLC
6.500% due 11/21/2033 2,000 2,100
Boeing Co.
2.196% due 02/04/2026 1,470 1,416
2.750% due 02/01/2026 490 475
6.259% due 05/01/2027 570 583
6.298% due 05/01/2029 20 21
6.388% due 05/01/2031 200 209
Carvana Co. (b)
13.000% due 06/01/2030 861 939
14.000% due 06/01/2031 1,023 1,221
Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
5.125% due 11/05/2026 300 299
6.439% due 11/05/2026 400 401
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Imperial Brands Finance Netherlands BV
5.250% due 02/15/2031 EUR
Imperial Brands Finance PLC
3.500% due 07/26/2026 $

JetBlue 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
4.000% due 11/15/2032

Nissan Motor Acceptance Co. LLC

5.300% due 09/13/2027 $
Nissan Motor Co. Ltd.

4.345% due 09/17/2027

4.810% due 09/17/2030

NMG Holding Co., Inc.

8.500% due 10/01/2028

Rivian Holdings LLC

10.502% due 10/15/2026

RolIs-Royce PLC

5.750% due 10/15/2027

Uber Technologies, Inc.

4.300% due 01/15/2030

United Airlines 2020-1 Class A Pass-Through Trust
5.875% due 10/15/2027

Venture Global Calcasieu Pass LLC

3.875% due 08/15/2029

Venture Global LNG, Inc.

9.500% due 02/01/2029

9.875% due 02/01/2032

4.0%
Adnoc Murban Rsc Ltd.
4.250% due 09/11/2029
Altice France S.A.

3.375% due 01/15/2028 EUR
DISH DBS Corp.
5.250% due 12/01/2026 $

5.750% due 12/01/2028
Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Capital S.A.

2.250% due 11/22/2024 EUR
8.625% due 04/28/2034 $
Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Finance PLC

2.950% due 04/15/2025 EUR
Intelsat Jackson Holdings S.A.

6.500% due 03/15/2030 $
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

3.150% due 01/01/2026

3.250% due 06/01/2031

3.300% due 12/01/2027

3.500% due 06/15/2025

3.750% due 07/01/2028

Petroleos Mexicanos

6.700% due 02/16/2032

Thames Water Utilities Finance PLC

7.125% due 04/30/2031 GBP
Topaz Solar Farms LLC
5.750% due 09/30/2039 $
$100,382
65.2%
Fannie Mae

0.000% due 01/25/2043
3.000% due 09/25/2046 (d)
3.000% due 03/01/2050
3.000% due 05/01/2052
4.000% due 08/01/2042
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300 349
750 731
154 146
100 $ 99
600 577
800 739
400 407
800 805

3,700 3,778
200 195
864 885
200 185
825 912
575 628

18,100
400 389
200 166

1,010 937
470 411
600 570
430 333

5,100 4,291

1,615 1,521

4,268 4,175
200 179
966 922
685 678
403 387

2,676 2,382
100 104
299 298

17,743

94,386

2 1
806 114

1,020 893
597 515

56 53
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4.000% due 09/01/2042 3 3
4.000% due 10/01/2042 2 2
4.000% due 10/01/2048 384 360
4.000% due 11/01/2048 55 51
4.000% due 03/01/2049 218 205
4.000% due 11/01/2049 36 33
4.000% due 01/01/2050 8 7
4.000% due 07/01/2050 76 71
4.000% due 08/01/2050 310 299
4.000% due 11/01/2050 630 590
4.000% due 09/01/2051 $ 74 $ 69
4.000% due 12/01/2052 342 317
4.500% due 10/01/2052 1,900 1,807
4.500% due 03/01/2053 932 886
4.500% due 08/01/2053 951 904
4.500% due 09/01/2053 960 912
5.000% due 04/01/2053 1,973 1,919
5.000% due 05/01/2053 208 202
5.000% due 06/01/2053 2,798 2,722
5.000% due 07/01/2053 966 941
5.000% due 01/01/2054 97 95
5.000% due 02/01/2054 1,846 1,796
5.000% due 05/01/2054 32 31
5.000% due 06/01/2054 3,871 3,764
5.000% due 07/01/2054 2,639 2,568
5.000% due 08/01/2054 986 959
5.500% due 06/01/2053 2,769 2,749
6.500% due 11/01/2053 959 980
6.500% due 12/01/2053 252 258
6.500% due 01/01/2054 4,341 4,432
Fannie Mae, TBA (e)

3.000% due 12/01/2054 10,800 9,302
3.500% due 12/01/2054 1,092 976
4.000% due 12/01/2054 8,583 7,931
4.500% due 12/01/2054 1,200 1,139
5.000% due 12/01/2054 17,300 16,806
5.500% due 12/01/2054 33,275 32,946
6.000% due 12/01/2054 5,000 5,033
6.000% due 11/01/2054 62,225 62,597
6.500% due 12/01/2041 46,950 47,925
7.000% due 11/01/2054 6,750 6,989
Freddie Mac

0.826% due 02/15/2044 (d) 1,099 115
2.500% due 01/15/2028 (d) 405 10
2.500% due 01/01/2051 2,903 2,418
2.500% due 02/01/2051 9,505 7,920
3.000% due 09/01/2049 491 424
3.000% due 05/01/2052 958 826
4.000% due 08/01/2042 49 47
4.000% due 09/01/2042 70 66
4.000% due 05/01/2048 91 85
4.000% due 08/01/2049 7 7
4.000% due 03/01/2050 1,043 971
4.000% due 05/01/2050 1,051 981
4.000% due 06/01/2050 569 531
4.000% due 10/01/2052 9,872 9,132
4.500% due 06/01/2053 1,946 1,849
4.500% due 09/01/2053 951 904
5.000% due 06/01/2053 2,603 2,538
5.000% due 07/01/2053 926 901
5.000% due 09/01/2053 1,896 1,844
5.000% due 11/01/2053 2,285 2,222
5.000% due 05/01/2054 88 86
5.000% due 07/01/2054 5,142 5,000
5.000% due 08/01/2054 296 288
5.500% due 06/01/2053 3,869 3,837
5.500% due 07/01/2053 2,656 2,636
6.500% due 01/01/2054 423 432
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2024 10 31
GinnieMae
3.000% due 01/20/2052 513 450
3.000% due 02/20/2052 69 61
3.000% due 03/20/2052 189 166
4.000% due 05/20/2049 376 353
5.500% due 07/20/2053 1,809 1,803
5.500% due 08/20/2053 1,640 1,633
Ginnie Mae, TBA (&)
2.500% due 12/01/2054 $ 400 $ 339
3.000% due 12/01/2042 2,400 2,105
3.500% due 12/01/2054 1,000 904
4.000% due 12/01/2054 10,400 9,685
4.500% due 12/01/2041 5,600 5,345
5.000% due 12/01/2054 1,300 1,269
293,335
$298,517
10.4%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (F)
0.125% due 04/15/2025 (k) 1,064 1,049
0.125% due 07/15/2030 (k) 1,842 1,680
0.125% due 01/15/2031 121 109
0.125% due 07/15/2031 117 105
0.250% due 01/15/2025 4,817 4,781
0.250% due 07/15/2029 951 888
0.250% due 02/15/2050 980 613
0.375% due 07/15/2025 (k) 1,536 1,517
0.625% due 07/15/2032 3,684 3,358
0.750% due 02/15/2042 139 112
0.750% due 02/15/2045 936 717
0.875% due 02/15/2047 913 701
1.000% due 02/15/2046 399 318
1.000% due 02/15/2048 894 700
1.000% due 02/15/2049 2,002 1,553
1.375% due 07/15/2033 4,146 3,968
1.375% due 02/15/2044 135 118
1.500% due 02/15/2053 1,059 910
1.750% due 01/15/2034 1,331 1,307
1.875% due 07/15/2034 9,129 9,068
2.125% due 02/15/2041 144 145
2.375% due 01/15/2025 (k) 521 519
U.S. Treasury Bonds
4.625% due 05/15/2054 12,200 12,488
46,724
$51,080
25.9%
Alternative Loan Trust
5.054% due 02/20/2047 1,832 1,448
5.392% due 01/25/2036 1,650 1,470
7.761% due 05/20/2046 1,699 1,544
American Home Mortgage Investment Trust
5.677% due 02/25/2045 1,292 1,208
Ameriquest Mortgage Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through Certificates
5.010% due 11/25/2033 9 9
Argent Securities, Inc. Asset-Backed Pass-Through Certificates
5.712% due 01/25/2034 1,547 1,465
Avon Finance No.4 PLC
5.860% due 12/28/2049 GBP 2,060 2,650
Bear Stearns Alternative-A Trust
4.712% due 02/25/2036 $ 2,193 1,820
BSST Mortgage Trust
7.654% due 02/15/2037 500 245
8.304% due 02/15/2037 1,000 459
9.304% due 02/15/2037 400 168
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Canterbury Finance No.4 PLC
5.804% due 05/16/2058 GBP 1,833 2,364
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust
5.407% due 02/25/2036 $ 3,000 2,393
5.752% due 05/25/2034 496 518
CIM Trust
4.500% due 03/25/2062 2,058 1,989
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust
3.518% due 05/10/2035 $ 7,200 $ 6,972
Countrywide Home Loan Mortgage Pass-Through Trust
5.572% due 02/25/2035 1,195 1,087
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital
3.726% due 02/27/2046 2,152 1,116
4.155% due 07/27/2037 3,056 2,685
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust
3.904% due 04/25/2062 3,729 3,554
4.088% due 12/27/2060 6,487 6,468
CWABS Asset-Backed Certificates Trust
5.102% due 02/25/2036 1,923 1,832
CWABS Asset-Backed Notes Trust
5.512% due 07/25/2036 82 81
Ellington Loan Acquisition Trust
5.952% due 05/25/2037 1,742 1,696
First Franklin Mortgage Loan Trust
5.802% due 07/25/2033 319 331
Freddie Mac Mul tifamily Structured Pass-Through Certificates
0.876% due 06/25/2029 (d) 1,573 53
2.979% due 10/25/2046 273 264
7.635% due 12/25/2047 66 66
Fremont Home Loan Trust
5.467% due 11/25/2035 2,200 1,992
5.527% due 01/25/2036 5,000 4,067
GCT Commercial Mortgage Trust
7.268% due 02/15/2038 1,310 6
GS Mortgage-Backed Securities Trust
3.750% due 10/25/2057 1,842 1,792
GSAMP Trust
5.132% due 03/25/2047 1,146 1,051
5.827% due 06/25/2034 2,933 3,019
Hilton USA Trust
4.927% due 11/05/2035 3,597 944
HS1 Asset Securitization Corp. Trust
4.992% due 12/25/2036 1,842 1,562
INTOWN Mortgage Trust
8.489% due 08/15/2039 400 402
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
0.360% due 10/05/2040 (d) 2,500 35
6.039% due 02/12/2051 21 21
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
5.062% due 10/25/2036 109 108
JPMorgan Mortgage Trust
5.500% due 12/27/2035 56 47
Mastr Asset-Backed Securities Trust
5.112% due 10/25/2036 182 80
MFA Trust
4.400% due 03/25/2068 3,882 3,779
MHC Commercial Mortgage Trust
6.519% due 04/15/2038 800 796
Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust
2.750% due 07/25/2059 230 223
Mortimer Btl PLC
6.150% due 12/22/2056 GBP 1,273 1,647
Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
3.790% due 11/15/2032 $ 820 703
NovaStar Mortgage Fundiing Trust
6.427% due 12/25/2034 728 695
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PHH Alternative Mortgage Trust

6.000% due 02/25/2037

PRET LLC

3.721% due 07/25/2051

5.487% due 10/25/2051

Pretium Mortgage Credit Partners LLC
4.992% due 02/25/2061

Residential Asset Mortgage Products Trust

5.592% due 05/25/2037

Residential Mortgage Acceptance CorporationNo.3 PLC
6.175% due 02/15/2047

Stratton Mortgage Funding PLC

6.711% due 06/20/2060

Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
5.072% due 10/25/2037

5.287% due 07/25/2036

5.827% due 05/25/2035

Temple Quay No.1PLC

6.452% due 07/24/2085

Towd Poiint Mortgage Funding Granite 6 PLC

5.878% due 07/20/2053

Towd Point Mortgage Trust

2.900% due 10/25/2059

3.750% due 09/25/2062

Verus Securitization Trust

6.259% due 12/25/2068

WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
5.832% due 10/25/2045

6.261% due 11/25/2042

Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages Number Three PLC
7.130% due 12/21/2049

Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates WMALT Trust
5.821% due 04/25/2047

WSTN Trust

6.297% due 07/05/2037

$123,541

9.8%
Allegro CLO XI Ltd.
5.867% due 01/19/2033
Aurium CLO 111 DAC
3.849% due 04/16/2030
Betony CLO 2 Ltd.
5.931% due 04/30/2031
BlueMountain CLO XX11 Ltd.
5.998% due 07/15/2031
BNPP AM Euro CLO DAC
3.829% due 10/15/2031
Carvana Auto Receivables Trust
6.090% due 11/10/2026
CIFC Funding 111 Ltd.
6.093% due 10/22/2031
CPS Auto Receivables Trust
6.130% due 09/15/2026
Fidelity Grand Harbour CLO DAC
4.681% due 03/15/2032
Ford Credit Auto Owner Trust
3.190% due 07/15/2031
GLS Auto Receivables Issuer Trust
5.520% due 11/15/2027
LCM Loan Income Fund I Ltd.
5.909% due 04/20/2031
Madison Park Funding XXIX Ltd.
5.812% due 10/18/2030
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2,070 1,670

3,826 3,803

3,252 3,224

4,377 4,358

1,213 1,092

GBP 2,718 $ 3,519
1,700 2,191

$ 2,895 1,802
6,853 6,756

2,387 2,312

GBP 1,630 2,100
1,331 1,715

$ 1,536 1,459
3,204 3,013

1,711 1,724

976 937

280 265

GBP 1,130 1,451
$ 4,503 3,79
500 505

116,614

2,400 2,405

EUR 3,360 3,642
$ 586 587
2,083 2,087

EUR 2,457 2,665
$ 338 339
2,224 2,232

136 136

EUR 1,299 1,412
$ 295 294
1,000 1,003

1,095 1,097

1,820 1,826



2024 10

Marathon CLO X111 Ltd.
5.856% due 04/15/2032

MF1LLC

6.909% due 06/19/2037

Navient Private Education Loan Trust
3.910% due 12/15/2045

Navient Student Loan Trust

5.871% due 08/26/2069

Nelnet Student Loan Trust

6.640% due 02/20/2041

OneMain Financial Issuance Trust
4.890% due 10/14/2034

Pagaya Al Debt GrantorTrust

5.183% due 06/15/2032 (e)

Pagaya Al Debt Trust
6.660% due 07/15/2031
7.128% due 06/16/2031
7.600% due 12/16/2030

Palmer Square European Loan Funding DAC
5.042% due 05/15/2033
Research-Driven Pagaya Motor Asset Trust
7.130% due 01/26/2032
Research-Driven Pagaya Motor Asset TrustV
5.320% due 09/25/2030

SMB Private Education Loan Trust
2.340% due 09/15/2034
6.460% due 02/16/2055

Upstart Pass-Through Trust
3.800% due 04/20/2030

Upstart Securitization Trust
5.500% due 06/20/2032

Volvo Financial Equipment LLC
4.560% due 05/17/2027

$43,928

6.1%
Argentina Government International Bond
1.000% due 07/09/2029
3.500% due 07/09/2041
Australia Government Bond
1.750% due 06/21/2051
Israel Government International Bond
5.000% due 10/30/2026
Mexico Government International Bond
. 750% due 11/27/2031 (f)
.000% due 12/03/2026 (f)
.000% due 11/30/2028 (f)
.000% due 08/24/2034 (f)
.500% due 06/03/2027
.750% due 05/229/2031
.500% due 03/01/2029
.500% due 05/31/2029
Peru Government International Bond
5.350% due 08/12/2040
5.400% due 08/12/2034
6.150% due 08/12/2032
6.900% due 08/12/2037
6.950% due 08/12/2031
7.300% due 08/12/2033
7.600% due 08/12/2039
Romania Government International Bond
5.250% due 05/30/2032
5.375% due 03/22/2031
Russiia Government international Bond
5.250% due 06/23/2047

WO ~NNDDWOWN
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2,096 2,099
992 993
37 37
1,490 1,486
686 697
1,433 1,432
5,000 $ 5,000
489 495
372 372
7 7
1,605 1,749
2,969 2,999
2,041 2,034
14 14
2,903 2,923
506 499
893 888
700 699
44,218

17 12
3,702 1,907
1,100 380
3,100 3,434
78,115 3,340
1,984 93
9,671 463
1,984 89
14,500 685
1,600 72
9,800 465
6,200 294
678 149
616 148
3,778 987
1,195 311
3,100 857
2,900 805
1,800 492
1,720 1,865
250 275
200 0
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South Africa Government International Bond
7.000% due 02/28/2031
8.000% due 01/31/2030
8.500% due 01/31/2037
8.875% due 02/28/2035
9.000% due 01/31/2040

10.500% due 12/21/2026

Turkey Government International Bond
4._250% due 03/13/2025

5.250% due 03/13/2030
5.750% due 05/11/2047
7.625% due 04/26/2029

Turkiye Government Bond
50.000% due 09/06/2028

52.191% due 05/17/2028
53.640% due 05/20/2026
53.640% due 08/19/2026

$29,524

0.8%
Amsurg Corp. (h)
Intelsat S.A. (h)
Neiman Marcus Group Ltd. LLC (h)
Windstream Holdings LLC

$2,716

0.0%
Uniti Group, Inc.

$119

0.1%
Windstream Services LLC
10/25/2059 (e)

$444

3.9%
(i) 3.2%

0.2%
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
6.412% due 09/04/2025 (g)

0.7%
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd.
2.990% due 11/01/2024
3.400% due 11/01/2024
4.330% due 11/01/2024
Bank of Nova Scotia
2.850% due 11/01/2024
BNP Paribas Bank
2.250% due 11/01/2024
2.310% due 11/01/2024
2.990% due 11/01/2024
3.490% due 11/01/2024
4.170% due 11/01/2024
6.440% due 11/01/2024
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5,400 268
2,900 155
8,400 398
8,100 410
2,000 95
65,900 3,879
3,000 2,993
600 567
211 164
270 283
2,100 60
32,600 $ 939
300 9
100 3
27,346

24,832 1,353
21,750 654
4,789 629
51,928 1,277
3,913

19 95

95

34 444
444

14,600

900 902
226 134

22 15

4 4

7 5

218 165

4 0

139 83
153 14
173 223
658 37
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2024 10 31
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
0.010% due 11/01/2024 \ 925 6
2.850% due 11/01/2024 CAD 9 6
4.170% due 11/01/2024 GBP 6 7
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 7 7
Citibank N.A.
2.340% due 11/01/2024 EUR 3 3
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 43 43
DBS Bank Ltd.
4.330% due 11/01/2024 27 27
DBS Bank ASA
2.310% due 11/01/2024 SEK 1 0
2.340% due 11/01/2024 EUR 72 78
3.400% due 11/01/2024 AUD 125 82
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 15 15
HSBC Bank
2.250% due 11/01/2024 SGD 107 $ 81
HSBC Bank PLC
2.340% due 11/01/2024 EUR 122 132
4.170% due 11/01/2024 GBP 93 119
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 105 105
MUFG Bank Ltd.
0.010% due 11/01/2024 \ 1,745 11
Royall Bank of Canada
4.170% due 11/01/2024 GBP 2 2
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp.
0.010% due 11/01/2024 \ 40,841 268
2.340% due 11/01/2024 EUR 261 283
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 42 42
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
0.010% due 11/01/2024 \ 23,704 156
2.340% due 11/01/2024 EUR 5 6
4.170% due 11/01/2024 GBP 58 75
4.330% due 11/01/2024 $ 30 30
2,264
17,766
$17,764
(a) 145.0% $ 652,975
$676,137
gy 0.3% 1,354
$(440)
(45.3%) (204,130)
100.0% $ 450,199
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“(Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

Assels
Financial assets af tair value thiough prof or loss (Mole 2.2, 51
Cash and cash squivalants (Moba 2.1}
Recenvables for
Unis rssued (Mobe 210, 3]
Sale of pwestment inthe Sslected Fund (Note 24)
Qaher atiats
Total assals

Liakbil#ises

Payables for
Purchase of invesiment in the Seleded Fund (Note 24)
Fee agert fees (Mobe 8 2C)
Irvastmant managament faes (Mote 8 28)
Unds rapurchased Mote 2 10, 3)
Ongamzation lees
Prinbing Saes
Distrbition lees Mot & 15)
Administrator fees (Mole 8 145
Pratessongl fees (Mole 8 1E)
Custody lees (Mote & 18)
Agark member company keas (Nobs 8 2E )
Transler agert fas (Maote § 10
Fegtrabon fess

Leabulities [encluding equiy)

Equily [being el azsets atbnb utable 1o (hi halder of edeermabile wnilks)

Decomber 31, 3034

December 31, 2023

£ 470 831,105 474 06 08T
& B ALK 4 Fi5.403
6,860,158 1875238

5012, 655 155 465

= 102 B35

482 879 354 430 420 £38
&,507.419 1,855,067

175,971 T8 E55

§33 403 sT817E

503,065 185458

137,259 137,258

104,550 103,280

96,640 BE.E35

473640 44 31

33 584 0 Tez

19,069 53392

11,516 10,531

10,926 4.3

A57 B

3 B 188 164 3814 815
3 473 £91 200 476 606 013

The accomparmdng nobes are an ntegral part of thase financial statemands.
1
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[Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Incame Dwcember 31, 2034 December 31, 3023
Ned mcomedt Ioss] from Anancial instruments at FUTRLS
Irlresd income Mobe 2.11) £ 155,593 5 48 40
et reaized gain on Bnandal as5als and labilbees &b fair vaue
rroasgh profit of loss tNote 211, T) 5,805427 5153185
Net changs in urredied appeacialion on Inanasl asets and
lisbilties at fair value through proft orloss (Nole 22,2 #1, T) 24 670,737 37 353 049
Tokal incoms 30629 757 32555174
Expenses
Fédr iggant fegd (Mot 8.2C) 2.936.196 2. I6T.E15
Investment management feas (Mote § 28} 240210 230,27
Crstribaudion fess (Note 8 1C) 1,001 Aed 105191
Admnssiralor fees (MNote & 1A4) 282047 27 651
Trarster agent fees (Mote & 10) 169375 4,128
Cughody fees [Mote 8 1) 0078 157094
Agent membar company leas (Mote § 2E) 43674 41,377
Professional fees (Nobe 8 1E) 43010 15,796
Prirdmg fads 182303 4673
Ragistration fess 1,590 2070
Tolsl exponses T.038,138 6,567 4682
Operating profit 2 Bl BE 25 982 712
Total comprehensive income {being Increase in net assets attributable
ta the holder of redesmable units from aperations ) £ !_3&3131& £ 250687 712

1 This relafes bo net ncome from firsncial insiruments measured at tair value through proft o loss ("FYTPL ) including realzed and

unraghied glnsfosses on financial agsels and liabilfies at far value through profit or loss

The accompaming nobes are an ntegral part of these financiad stabemanls.
2

130/239



PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended Decamber 31, 2024

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(Exprassed i U5, Dolfars)

At December 31,2022

§ 384 GRS 108

Issue of units (Wote 3]
Repurchases of unis (Mote 28, 1)
Total comprehensive income (being noaeass in net assets

65,544 330
(52,566 427)

M5 A63 T2

aitributeble bo the holder of redeemable ursts rom gperations)
At December 31, 2023

§ 426606013

Iesud of units (Mobe 3)
Repurchases of unds (Mote 2 8, 3)

Total comprahensive income (being moreasa in nel assels
bbb an by bo i Bl dar of idhe o bl urels o operations)

BL158.451
(29,654 862)

JE B0 B8

Ak December 31, 2024

$ 473891700

Thie actompanang nobes are an mlegral par of these inancial stabemonts

=
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended Decamber 31, 2024

[Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities: December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Total comprehensive income (heing norease in net assets atrivutabis
Lo Bk Pl e o rodedmable units Tm operafians) £ 25801 818 5 25,962,712

Adjustmends 1o recomohs botal compraiensive Inoome (Being Intreass n
nat assels atintudable bo the holder of rede emable units fom
cperations | lo cash used in operating actvibies

Purchases of imvesiment in the Selscted Fund (62.492,188) 167.8371.835)

Frocesds from dsposition of investment in the Satscted Fund 46,175,344 50,968, 347

et realizad (gain) on Enancal assels and lablibes at far value

thifeuEh prall o loas [5,205 427) 15.153,185)

et change n urrealzad (apprecsatson] on Snancisd assets and

abiltios & tair value theough profit or kosd (24.6T0.72T) {27.253.840)

(increasayidecreas e n recaivabies for sale of imeestment in he

Selectied Fund [317.200) 6213

Daecreasalmoreass) n obher assals 102,835 (56 485)

Increass in payables for purchase of ewestment m ihe Salected Fund 4951457 1,055,503

Inoreas in olher poyeblest™ 04 302 2005 B34
Met cash (used in) operating sctivities i{ 18 350 307 {13 068 B55)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Procesds from units issued. nat of changs in recesrabdes for unts

Esuad 58,123.511 7477238

Repurchesas of unds, méd of change n payabdes Ior unds repundhased {38,537 252 {52,622 572
Met cash provided by financing activities 18, 706 250 14 854 656
Net mcrease s cash and cash equevalents 448,052 1,766,001
Cash and cash squivaberts & beginning of yaar [Mote 7 1) 4219403 2433 802
Cash and cash equivalents st end of year (Nete 2.1) £ 4 55 455 i 4,219,408

Supplementary infermabion on cash Bows Forn operatng adivibas
Enbordsl ticin dd $ 155,503 $ 148 40

™ Odher payables compose of fee agent lees, imeesiment management fees, distibution fees, fransler agent fees, custody fees,
professional Tees, admirisiraton 65, pranting lees, ongarzation fees, agent member company 8es and regeirabion fees as dacloged
im ihe Statemant of Financial Posibion.

The accompamdng nobes are an ntegral part of thase financial statemands.
4
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Hotes to Financial Staterments
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed it U5, Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

PIMCO Short Tesrn Income Strategy Fund (the “Series Trust”) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman} [l
{the “Trust”), an open-ended unnbrella wnit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under
Cayman Islands lew. The Series Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated May 31, 2019
and executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the "Trustee”), a trust company incorporated under the lews of the
Cayman lslands, The Seres Trust commenced operations on July 9, 2019,

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (as Revised) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act (as Revised) of the Cayman |stands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee {and therefore the Sedes Trust) is One Nexus Way. Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman |slands.

The manager of the Seres Trust is UBS Managerment (Cayman) Limited (the Manager™).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the
“Administrator”, “Custodian” and “Transfer Agent’).

From October 3, 2024 UBS AG, London Branch ("UBS AGT) actz as the Fee Agent (the "Fes Agent”). Prior to that
date, Credit Suisse International acted as the Fee Agent.

Frem October 3, 2024, UBS Securities Japan Co, Lid, acts as the Agen! Member Company (the “Agent Merber
Company”), Prior to that date, Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited acted as the Agent Member Company.

The Imvestrment Manager of the Series Trust is PIMCO Japan Ltd {the “Investment Manager™).

The Manager has authorized Sumitorno Mitsui Banking Corporation to act as the Distributor (the “Destributor”) of the
units in Japan.

One class of undts in the Sedes Trust is currently available for issue: Class A Units (the “Class A Units™). The Series
Trust and the Class A Units are denominated in U5, Dollars ("USD™ or *57.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to invest indirectly mainly in fixed income instruments, fixed income
derivatives and related assets across giobal markets {(including emergng markets). The Seres Trust aims to secure
attractive income and to seek long-term stable capital appreciation. The Senes Trust seeks to achieve its investment
cbjectve by investing substanrtially all of the assels of the Sanes Trust into the Class B (USD) Class Units of PIMCO
Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund (the "Selected Fund™).

The Selected Fund is a seres tust of PBMCO Bermuda Trust I, an umbrella unit trust established under the kaws of
Bermuda as a multi-series trust (the “Umbredla Trust®).

The primary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek attractive income, consistent with prudent
investment management. The secondary investment objective of the Selected Fund is to seek long-term capital
appreciation. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, which has substantial experize in managing ficed
income instruments, is acting as both manager of the Selected Fund (the "SF Manager®) and investment adviser of
the Selected Fund (the "SF Investment Adviser™). The base cumency of the Class B (USD) Class units is USD.
The SF Manager irvests primarily in a dversified portfolio of names across the global markets which it determanes to
have attractive income. The SF Manager also aims to manage the portfolio in a fexible way by adusting the porticlio
construction of the Selected Fund in response to the market environment in consideration of interest rate risk and
credit rizk in respect of the underlying portiolio.

The Investment Manager of the Series Trust shall have day-to-day imvestment decision-making and ongoing
monitoring responsibility over the porion of the Series Trust's portfolio comgprising the Selected Fund and USD cash
and money marke! securities (the “Sub-advised Portfolio™). The Sub-advised Portfolio may generate a certain amount
of meome each year. Athough the Manager doas not intend to distribute such inceme in principle, such income may
be distributed to unitholders on each distribution date.

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Seres Trust held 84.1% and 100.0%, respectively, of the
Selected Fund's net assels.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

Currently the Selected Fund haz one Class of units - Class B (USD). The Senes Trust invests into the Selected Fund
by purchasing the Selected Fund's parbcipating shares in the Class B (USD). The Selected Fund allows repurchases
of these shares an any business day.

Mevements in the fair value of the Selected Fund's portfalio and cormespondng movements in the fair value of the
Selected Fund may expose the Series Trust to a loss.

Final Repurchase Day

The Senes Trust will continue until the earlier of December 1. 2163 and the earliest practicable repurchase day
follcwing the cccurrence of a compulsory repurchase event (the “Final Repurchase Deay”), unless terrminated earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Dead.

The units are compulsorily repurchased upen the first to occur of any ofthe follewing:

i the net asset value on any valuation day is 530,000,000 or less and on that valuation day or thereafter the
Manager determines that all of the units should be compulsorly repurchased by ghing notice to all
unitholders; or

(i} the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units should be compulsorly repurchased (each
a "Cormpulzory Repurchase Event™).

Upcn the eccurrence of a Compulsory Repurchase Event, each unit is repurchased on the Final Repurchase Day at
the final repurchase price per unit. The final repurchase price per unit is calculated by the Administrator in its sole
digcretion in accordance with the Offering Memorandum and the Appendx 31 a5 the Net Asset Value per unit on the
Final Repurchase Day (or if such day is not also a valuation day the immedately preceding valuaton day).
Repurchase Day is each dealing day which is also a day on which no Series Trust disruption event cccurs andlor
such cther day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust, Unitholder is
able to receive an amount in respect of sach unit repurchased en any Repurchase Day prior o the Final Repurchase
Day equal to the Met Asset “WValue per unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (or if that Repurchaze Day is not alsa
a valuation day the immediately preceding valuation day) (the “Repurchase Price”), There is no repurchase fee
applied to the Repurchase Price in respect of each unit being repurchased.

On March 18, 2023, UBS Group AG (UBS") agreed to acquire Crodit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suisse”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Supervisory Authority (FINMA),

On June 12, 2023, VB3 Group AG anncunced the legal clesing of the acquisition of Credit Sulsse Group AG by way
of a statutory merger. As a result of the closing Credit Suisse Group AG ceased to exist, and Credit Suisse AG
became a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. One of the key steps of the integration is the legal
merger of UBS AG and Credét Suisse AS (the “Parent Bank Merger”). The Parent Bank Merger is a statutory merger
by absorption under Swiss law, whereby UBS AG will be the sunaving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cease to exist
upon completion of the merger. At this point in time, in principle, all assets, liabilities and contracts of Credit Suisse
AG and its branches will automatically transfer to UBS AG {and its branches as the case may be} by operation of law
{in other words by “universal succession’). As a result, UBS AG will automatically take over all the rights and
responsibilities from Credit Suisze AG. The Parant Bank Merger was completed with affect frons May 31, 2024,

Foltowing a Special resolution dated February 1, 2024, the Manager changed #= name and is now incorporated under
the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited. The Master Trust Deed was revized through a Deed of
Amendment on March 1, 2024,

On February 28, 2024, the Trustee resolved to change the name of the Trust from Credt Suisse Universal Trust
{Cayman) [l to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 1.

Certain comparative figuresin the financial statements have been adjusted to align with curent year presentation,

The financial statements were authonzed for issue by the Trustee on April 29, 2025,
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise staled, The fnancial
staternents have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards ("IFRS").

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of
applying the Senes Trust's accounting policies. Areas where assumptions and estimates are material to the fnancial
staternents are disclosed in Mote 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The Senes Trust has adopted Investment Entities {Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS Accounting
Standard 12 and |AS 27) (2012) (the Amendments). Management concluded thal the Series Trust meets the
definition of an investment entity,

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial Habilities

IFRS Accounting Standard 9 contains three principal classification categories for fnancial assets: measured at
amorbized cost, fair value through pro® and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVOCI). The classification of financial aszats under IFRS Accounting Standard 9 is generally basad on the business
model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash low characteristics.

On initial recognition, the Senes Trusl dassifies financial assels as measured at amortized cost or FYTPL.
A financial asset i measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and s not designated as at
FYTPL:
i} Ris held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold assels to collect confractual cash flows;
and,
ii} Bs contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely represent payments of
principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial aszet iz measured at fair value through proBt or loss if any of the following apply:

i} Bs contractual terms do not give nse to cash Bows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPi) on the principal amount outstanding;

i} B s not held within a busness model whose cbjective is either to collect contractual cash lows, orto
both collect contractual cash fows and sell;

i} At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when daing 50 elimnates or
materially reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would ctherwize arize from
measuring assets or liabiltes or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI. the Seres Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the fnancial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or ameount of contractual cash Bews such that it woubd not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the
Series Trust considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features;

- terrrs that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flews from speciied assels (e.g. non-recourse featwres);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. perodical reset of interest rates).
The Series Trust has determined that &t has two business modals:
- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables for units issued

sale of investment in the Selected Fund and other assets. These financial assets are held to collect
contractual cash flow.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed it U5, Dollars)

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (imeestment in the
Sabected Fundy, These fnancial assets are managed. and their parformance is evaluated, on a fir value
bbasis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the chjective of the busness model in which a Snancial asset is held, the Senes Trust
considers all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented mvestment strategy and the execubion of this strategy in practice. This includes whether
the mvestment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, malching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related labilties or
expected cash cutflows or reakizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business modeal) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: 8.g whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assels managed or the contractual cash Bows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior perods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future =ales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Seres Trust's continuing recegnition of the assets.

Financial liabilites caried at amartized cost include payables for purchase of investrment in the Selected Fund fes
agent fees, investment management fees, units repurchased, distibution fees, administrator fees, prnting fees,
custody fees, professional fees, fransfer agent fees, registration fees and agent member company fees.

Impaiment of financial assets

The ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments
at PVOCH, but not to investrments in equity instruments.

Bazed on the Seres Trusts assessment, the ECL modal does not have a materal impact on the Seres Trust's
financial assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FYTPL and the impairment requinemants do not apply
to such instruments.

- The financial assels at amamized cost are short-term (|.e. no lenges than 12 months), of kigh eredt guality
andfor highly coltateralized, Accordngly, the ECLS on such assets ane expected to be small,

Changes In material accounting policles

The Sedres Trust adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (A&mendments to 145 1 and IFRS Accounting Sandard
Practice Staterment 2) For January 1, 2023, Although the amendments &d aot result in any changes to the
accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information dsclosed in the fnancial statements,

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material” rather than 'significant’ accounting policies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entites to
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that wsers need o understand other information in the
financial statements.

New standards, amendments and Interpretations issued but not effective for the year ended December 31,
H024:

A nurmber of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1,
2024 and earlier application is permitted; howewver, the Series Trust has not early applied these new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial
staternents.
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Series Trust considers all cash, foresgn cash and short-term deposits with original maturnity of three months or
less to be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilties in the Statement of Financial Position,

Al December 21, 2024 and Decermbaer 31, 2023, the Series Trust held the fllowing balances sz cash and cash
equivalents:

24 2023
Cash 3 SE3T ¥ 11,963
Time depasil 4 G55 818 & 7425
Cash and cagh equivalents in the Statement of Financial Pasition i 4 BEE 455 5 4 710 403
2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

{4} Classification

The Series Trust classifies fnancial assets and liabiltses into the following categornies:

Financial assets at fair value through proft or loss:
s Mandaterily at FYTPL: Investrment in the Sslected Fund

Financial assets at fair value through proft or loss consist of the following:

December31, 2024  December 31, 2024
— Fair Value — Cost
it in Selected Fund §___4ossiioe % 215 £82.063

December ¥1, 2023 December 31, 2023

— Fair Value —Cost
irevestmant in Selected Fund £ 424 033 027 £ 3068 539 781

Financial assets at amortized cost:
= Cash and cash eguivalents and receivables for units issued, receivable for sale of Investment in the
Selected Fund and other assets,

Financial liabilibes at amortized cost:
= Other liabilities: purchase of investment in the Selected Fund, fee agent fees, investment management fees,
units repurchased, distibution fees, organization fees, administrater fees, prnting fees, custody fees,
professional fees, transfer agent fees, agent member company fees and regstration fees.

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Seres Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilites on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the mstrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date
on which the Seres Trust commits to purchase of sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows fom the iwvestments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership, Financial iabilites are derecognized when its contractual obligations: are discharged,
canceled or expired.

(€} Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair valee with transaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all inancial azsets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the Eair value of the “Anancial assets and latalities at fair value through profit o loss” category ane presented n the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the pericd in which they anse. Realized gains or losses on sale of
investments are calculated using first-in-first-out methed. Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value
through profit or loss are camed at amontwed cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if
any. This i considered to approximate Bir value due 1o the shor-term of immediate nature of these mstruments,
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PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund
Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
For the year anded Decamber 31, 2024

(Expressed in U5, Dollars)

(D) Fair Value Estimation
The fair value of financial mstruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivabves and trading
secunties) is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value s the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value of a hability reflects its non-performance risk, nvestments of other assets for
which market guotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value az determined in good faith in
accordance with procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice fom the Manager. The resulting change in
unrealized gans or losses are reflacted i the Stakement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Forward Contracts

Forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated Bnancial instrument, currency, commodity
or an index at a specified future date for & specified price and may be settled in cash or another financial asset.
Forward contracts are valued using observable inputs, such as cumrency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied
to nobional amounts stated in the applicable contracts. Gains and losses are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through proft or less in the Statement of Comprehen sive Income.

{F} Investment in the Selected Fund

In principle, thi Investment Manager will invest a majority of the Met Aszet Value in the Selected Fund, The Selected
Fund is denominated in USD. The lhvestment Manager will not invest in non-USD denominated assets. The Series
Trust's investment in the Selected Fund iz subject to the terms and conditions of the Selected Fund's offering
documentation. The Series Trust records its investments in the Selected Fund at fair value based primarily on the
Selected Fund's net assets value (NAYT), as determined by the administrator of the Selected Fund. The Series Trust
reviews the details of the reported information obtaimed from the Selected Fund's administrator and considers: (i) the
liquidity of the Selected Fund, or its underdying vestments, (i) the value date of the NAY provided, (8) amy
restricions on redemptions. and (iv) the basis of accounting. Since the Senes Trust mvests substantially all of its
azsels in the Selected Fund, net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively, of the Series Trust iz generally
based on net capital appreciation or depreciation, respectively. of the Selected Fund, The value of the Series Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund is based on availabde information and does not necessarily represent the amount
that might ultimately be realized as such amount depends on future circumstances and cannot reasonably be
denominated unkt the Selected Fund's underying investment are actualy liguidated, Further, the Series Trust's
investment in the Selected Fund in indrectly subjected to restrictions, if any, of the kouidity of the Selected Fund's
investments.

The Serws Trust's investment in the Selected Fund is considerad to be liquid and can be redeemed on any business
Day. The Series Trust may at any time request the repurchase of its units at the applicable net asset value of such
units, The designated agent of the Selected Fund (the “Agent”) shall effect repurchases at the net asset value per unit
of the relevant class of the Selected Fund determined on the relevant dealing day on which the request for
repurchase of units in a form that is acceptable to the Agent is received by the Agent, calculated as setin the offering
memorandum of the Selected Fund; provided that if such a request to repurchase units is not received by the Agent
prior to 12:00 noon (Eastem time), the request for repurchase will be deemed to have been received and the
repurchase will be made at the relevant net asset value per unit determined on the next dealing day. ARer such
repurchase, the Senes Trust must hold etther (i) such minimum amount of units as specified herein relating to the
Selected Fund or (i} no units whatsoever, The minrmum holdng requirerments for the Selected Fund i 5100,000
investment in Class B (USD). The investment rinimum is in U.5. Dollars or the equivalent in another currency. For
the Selected Fund, payment of the repurchaze price will be made by the Trustee or its appointed agent by bank
transfer generally within three (3) business days after the dealing day upen which the repurchase notice is received,
or deemed to have been received, by the Agent, althcugh under cerain circumstances. payment may take up to eight
{8) business days after such dealing day.

2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial aszets and liabiities are offeet and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net
basis, or realize the azset and settle the liability simultanecwsty. As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
all financial assets and liabilites are shown at their gross amounts as none met the crteria for fnancial instrument
offeetting, and therefore have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position,

2.4 Recelvables for sale and payables for purchase of investment in the Selected Fund
Receivabdes for securities sold and payables for securiies purchazed represent trading transactions that have been
confracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Position date, respectively. Theze amounts are
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(Expressed it U5, Doliars)

recognized initally and subsequentty measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables
for securities sold. A provision for impaimment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust wil
not be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial recrganization, and default in payments are considered
indicators that the amount of recehables fof securites sold is mpaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

2.6 Forelgn Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Curmency
The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the investors in U.S. Dallars, The Trustee congiders
the U.5. Dollar as the currency that mest faithfully represents the economic effects of the undedying transactions.
events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in U.S. Dollars, which is the Series
Trust's functional and presentation currancy .

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in U.S. Dollar amounts at the date of
valuation, Purchases and sales of financial assels and liabilites, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expense items dencminated in foreign currencies are transiated into U.S, Dollar amounts on the respective dates of
such tranzactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foresgn exchange gains or lesses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liakiliies at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation on Bnancial assets and liakdibes at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incomea.

Realized and unrealized appreciation o depreciation kom forelgn cumenty lransactions and translation are disclosed
separatety in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income,

4.7 Distributions

The Senes Trust may generate a certain amount of income each year. The current poicy of the Sedies Trust is that
the Senes Trust is not expected to pay distributions to unitholders provided that, the Manager may, in its dscretion,
declare and pay distributions to unitholders from time to ime.

If the Manager does declare any distributions, it is anticipated that any such distributions are declared on an annual
basis on each distnbution declaration date from investment principal (a realzation of units in the Selected Fund} and
generated income received during the relevant distribution period (if any). SF Manager does not expect to declare
distributions with respect to the Selected Fund.

Any such distribution is determined by the Manager in its sole discrelion taking into account:

(@) an amount equal 1o the dstribution s recenved fram the Salected Fund (net of all applicable taxes) (if any):

{b) mterest accrued on the distributions received from (a) above, fom the time recerved by the Custodian until paid
out on the comesponding distribution date {the items referred to in paragraphs (a) - (b} hereafter referred to as the
“Generated Income®); and

(¢} realized and unrealized capital gains from the Selected Fund and miscellaneous costs, among other factors, per
unit each year.

Anvy distribution may be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal atinbutable to the units, that is in excess of
any Generated Income received (and which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over a distribution period,
where the Manager deems the Generated Income received to be insufficient of itself to fund that year's distribution
{such as where the Selected Fund does not declare a distribution during the redevant distribution period).

There were no distributions declared and paid during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023
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LB Repurchases of Units

The Senes Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Seres Trust classifes its puttable
instruments as liabilites i accordance with LA&S 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation.
The amendment requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified
&% equity whene certain strict criteda are met. Those chtena include:

=  The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;
=  The puttable instruments must be the mast subordinated class and class features must be identical;

*  There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or ancther financial asset other than the obligation
on the issuer to repurchase; and

= The total expected cash fows from the puttable instrument over s life must be based substantially on the
profit or loss ofthe issuer.

Az these condiions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified az equity at Decermnber 31, 2024 and
Decamber 31, 2023,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Seres Trust.

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is calculated by dividing the total equity by the total number of
outstanding units.

The Selected Fund Bnances its operations by issusng redesmable shares which are puttable at the holder's option
and entites the holder to a proportional stake in the respective Series Trust's net assets. The Series Trust holds

shares in the Selected Fund.

The Series Trust's maximum exposure to loss from is interests in the Salected Fund is equal to the total fair value of
its imvestments in the Selected Fund. Once the Series Trust has disposed of its shares in the Selected Fund the
Series Trust ceases to be exposed to any risk from the Selected Fund.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustes and the Manager, on behalf of the Seres Trust, enter into cenain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust's mexdmum exposure under these arangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of lesses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remcte.

210 Receivables lor Units |ssued and Payables Tor Units Repurchased

Receivable for units issued is camied at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is camed at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Staterment of
Financial Position date.

211 Net income/{loss) from financial instruments at FYTPL

MNet income from financial instruments at FYTPL includes reafzed and unrealized gainzicsses on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Met realized gain or loss from financial instruments ak FVTPL is
calculated using the first in, first out method. Net realized (Jossigain on Bnancial assets and liabdities at FWTPL
représants the difference between the cost of the financial instruments and its settlemeant price of the sale trade. Net
change in unrealized (depreciation)appreciation on financial assets and liab#ties at FWVTPL represents the difference
betwoen the camying amount of a financial instrurment at the beginning of the peried. or the transaction price if it was
purchased in the curent reporting periad and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting penod. Refer to Note 7
for further details,

Interest income presented on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on financial assets and
liabilties at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis.

L)
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2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all lacal income,
profits and capetal gains taxes until Decermnber 2, 2063. No such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at the present
tirme.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comgprehensive Income.
Withholding taxes would be shown as a separate Rem in the Satement of Comprehensve Income. No withholding
tax expense was paid during years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

The Selected Fund may choose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than Cayman islands. Many of
these foreign countries have tax laws which incdicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents
inchuding the Selected Fund, These capstal gains taxes are required to be determined on a self-assessment basis
and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Selected Fund's broker on a ‘withholding’ basis.

In accordance with 1AS 12 - [ncome Taxes, the Seeies Trust is reguired to recognize a tax liability when it iz probable
that the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax Eability to be assessed on the Seres Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorites have full knowledge of all the facts and
circumstances. The tax [ability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation
authorties using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively snacted by the end of the reporting
period. There s sometmes uncertanty about the way enacted tax law s applied to offshore investment Series
Trusts, This creates uncerainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Seres Trust.
Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax Eabilifes management considers all of the relevant facts and
circumstances available at the time which could influence the kelihocd of payment, including any formal or informal
practices of the relevant tax authorities.

Az at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a
limbility to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying fnancial statements. VWhile this represents
the Manager's bast estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital
gains earned by the Sedes Trust. This could happen withoul gving prior waming, possibly on a refraspective bass,

and could result in a lozs to the Series Trust,

2173 Investment in unconsolidated structured entities
The Seres Trust has concluded that all imeestments in the unlisted Selected Fund, in which it holds an interest but
does not consolidate, meets the definition of structured entities due to the following:

=  the voting nghts in these entities are not the dominant rights in decding who controls them as they relate to
administrative tasks ealy;

= the entities' activities are restricted by their respective investment strategy or offering documents; and

= these entities have a narow and well-defined objective to provide investment opportunities to investors,

The nature of and risks associated with the Series Trust's interest in the other funds are disclosed in Mote 5,
3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Net Assat Value of each unit of the Seres Trust is calculated by dviding the MNet Asset Value of the Series Trust
by the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Met Asset Value of
the Sedes Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in U.S. Dollars,

The minimurm initial subseription must be no less than 1 unit, Al unitholders must complete a subscription application,
The initial purchase price of units is $100 per unit. All payments for the units must be made in U.S. Dollars.
The Trustee may reject any subscription for amy reason and without providing reazons.

After the initial issue of units. an eligible imvestor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price, All payments for the units shall be made in U5, Dallars.

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 5:00 pum.

{Tokyo time) by no later than the second business day afer the relevant subscription date, Subscription applications
are imevocable.
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The total net assets, units cutstanding and net asset value per unit as of December 31, 2024 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per
Classee of unite Tatal net assats Units oulstanding unit
Class A Units H AT3 881200 4995141 E 1129143

The total net assets, units outstanding and net asset value per unit as of December 31, 2023 were as follows:

Net Asset Value per
Classes of units Tatal net assets Units outstanding wunit
Class A Units ¥ 426, 605 013 2,991 160 ¥ 105 3877

As of Decernber 31, 2024 and Decernber 31, 2023, all issued units were held by one unitholder, who holds 100% of
interast in the net assets.

A unitholder may tfransfer its holdings n units only with the prior witten consent of the Trustee which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of units wil be effective and binding on the Trustee or
unitholder until entered into the Series Trust's register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit to the Trustes of its duly designated agent a repurchase nolice réquestng to have all o
a portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Price on the relevant repurchase date. Repurchase orders may
be subrmitted in units. If such notice is not in respect of the entire holding wnits of such unitholder recordad in the
register of unitholders, then the Trustee in its sole discretion may apply a memmum repurchase requirement of 1 wnit.
Repurchase notices are irrevocable.

Ak the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased,

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (“CDSC")
The repurchase proceeds payable to a unitholder may be subject to the deduction of the COSC (if applicable}.

For units that are repurchased prior to the fifth anniversary ofthe date of their issue (whether voluntanly or by way of
a compulsory repurchase), a CDSC, calcvated as a percentage of the purchase price paid at the tme of subscriplion
for such units will be charged by the Distributer in accordance with the fallowing scale and paidto the Fee Agent

Holding Period COSC
1 year orless 2.00%
More than 1 year to 2 years or less 1.60%
More than 2 years to 3 years or less 20
(More than 3 years to 4 years or less 080
More than 4 years o 5 years or lezs 0.400%
Maore than 5 years Mone

For the purpese of calculating the holding period applicable to the CBSC. units will start ageing from the first day of
the menth which follows the month in which such units were iIssued until the redevant Repurchase Day.

The CDEC (if applicable) will be deducted from the Repurchase Price and is payable by the relevant repurchasing
unitholder to the Fee Agent and not to the Seres Trust,

Upon a Compulsory Repurchasze Event occurring or the Series Trust terminating prior to the Final Repurchase Day,
the COSC shall similarly apply; and the CDSC will be calculated as if the relevant units were repurchased on the day
on which the Compulsory Repurchase Event or termination of the Series Trust takes effect, unless the Manager in its
discretion determines othenaisa.

In accordance with the terms of the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement. the Fee Agent shall continue to be entitled to
receive the CDSC ifits appointment as Fee Agent is terminated.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units af any class are paid in cash but may be
made in kind {or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustes, in
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consulation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unithclder. If such a determination is
made by the Trustee. distibubions to all repurchasing unitholders on the same day are mada on the same basis,

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable currency as
a unithelder may regues, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to
such unitholder, Mo such repurchase proceads will bear interest prior to actual distribution.

Durmyg the year ended December 31, 2024, the proceeds from unfts issued and repurchased were as follows:

Proceeds from units  Proceeds from wnits

Classes of units issued rehased
Clags ALnils & B3 126431 ¥ {35,654 362)

Durng the year ended December 31, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchased werne as follows:

Procesds from units  Proceeds from wnits

Classes of unifs issusd repurchased
Clags A Urats £ 63,544 230 £ 152,508 427)
During the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the number of units issued and repurchased
were a5 follows:

At At
Cinsses of units December 31, 2003 Units isswed Umits repurchased  December 31, 2004
Class A Unds 3681 180 565 801 (361.820) 4185141

At At
Classes of units Decernber 31, 2022 Umits izswed Units repurchased December 31, 2023
Class AUnits JenzeT GEE, 49 {208 406) 3,991 180

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any
cireumstances where the caleulation of the Met Aszet Value per unit iz suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such & suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifed. Subscription applications and repurchass
notices cannct be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or

repurchase date, as the casa may be.
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGNVENTS

Management makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities. Estimates are continualty evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition. seldom equal the related actual results. The Seres Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in actve markets, such as over-the-counter derrvatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation technigues, VWhese valuation techniques (for example, models) are
used to determine fair values, they are validated and penodically reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's investment portfolio mainly comprizses ofthe Selected Fund. The Series Trust's activities expose it
to a vanety of financial risks: market risk (including currency nsk, nterest rate nisk and price msk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management of these risks is camed out by the Manager under policies approved by the Trustea.

The Senes Trust may be matenally affected by the actions of another enbty investing in the Selected Fund, For
example, if another unitholder of the Selected Fund repurchazes some or all of its interests in the Selected Fund, the
Selected Fund and, in turn, the Series Trust, may experience higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing
lower retumns. Similardy, the Selected Fund may become less diverse due to repurchases from its other unitholders,
resulting in increased porifolio risk. The Selected Fund may restrict its imvestment activities or be precluded from
investing in certain instruments due to regulatory restrictions on certain of ite direct or indirect invesiors or othenwise,
which may have an adverse effect on the performance of the Selected Fund, and, in tum, the Seres Trust.
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(4) Market Risk

{Iy Currency Risk

All fnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other assets and liabilites held
by the Seres Trust are denominated in U.S. Dollars, thus the Manage: balieves that the Seres Trust has itthe
cumrency risk exposure, and iz not subject to sk due to direct Bectuations in the prevailing levels of foreign currency
rates,

Investment in the Selected Fund in which the Series Trust invests may be denominated or quoted in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Seres Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency exchange rates can
affect the value of the Series Trust's portfolio.

Generally, when the Series Trust's functional cumency rises in value against another currency. a security
denominated in that currency loses value because the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion into the
Series Trust's Rmctional cumency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional cumency decreases in value
against ancther currency, a security denominated in that cumrency gains value.

This risk, generally known as “curmency nsk,” means that a strong functional currency of the Seres Trust may reduce
returns to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase these reburmns. Currency rates
mayy Suctuate sgnificantly over short periods of time for a number of reasons, includng changes in interest rates,
intervention (or the failure to intervene) by the govemnmants, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the impasition of currency contrels or other political developrments. As a result, the
Series Trust's wvestments in forelgn-currency denomenated securities may reduce its returns, Certain positions taken
by the Series Trust are designed to proft from forecasting cumency price movernents. Predicting future prces is
inherently wuncertain and the losses incurred, if the market moves against a position, will not be hedged. The
speculative aspect of attempting to predict absolute price movements is generally perceived to exceed that involved
in atternpting to pradict relative price Auctuations.

Through the use of various types of foreign currency fransactions, the Seres Trust may be exposed to the
perfarmance of a parbicular currehcy oF i encies to contibute to the performance of the Seres Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a successful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable to its curency activiies when the value of the functional curency weakens against the other cumencies of
the Series Trusl In addition, the Seres Trust will mcur transachon costs i connection with the currency strategy
designated by the Manager.

(I} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interast rales increase, Prices of longer-term securities genesally change more in response to interest
rate changes than prices of shorter-term securities. The Seres Trust may lose money If short-berm or long-temn
interest rates rise sharply or otherwise chanmge in 2 manner not anticipated by Seres Trust management. When
interast rates fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt
price of the debt security, The bigger the security's duration value, the farger the change in the price of the debt
security for a given movement in interest rates may be. Therefore, the MNet Asset Value may fluctuate.

Interest bearing assets held by the Seres Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents whose maturity is less
than three months and indwectly, the nvestment in the Selected Fund,

The yield on the Selected Fund's (and indirectly, the Senes Trust's) investments may be sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates, which may result in a mismatch bebwean the Selected Funds asset yield and bomowing
rates and consequently reduce or eliminate income derved from its investments,

If interest rates increase, prices of fixed income securities generally deckne, reducing the value of the Selected
Fund'= {and indirectly, the Sedes Trust's) investments. A major change in interest rates or a significant decline in the
markel value of the Master Fund's {and indirectly, the Trust's) investments, o other market event, could cause the
value of the investments of the Master Fund's investors (and indirectly the unitholders' investments in the Series
Trust), or its yield, to decline,

IFinterest rates change, the values of longer-duration debt securities are usually subject to greater change than the
values of shorter-duration debt securities.
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The Series Trust may invest in fixed ncome securites through its indirect exposure to the imvestments of the
Selected Fund. Any changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an
increase or decrease in the value of the securities held.

At December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, should interest rates have lowered of risen by 50 basis paints with
all other variables remaining constant, the increase or decrease in total comprehensive income of the Series Trust
{being increase in net assets attricutable to the holder of redeemable units from operations for the period) would
amaolint to apgradamately $23.270 and 521,087, respectively, assuming that the cash position will be held for one
year,

(11} Market Price Risk

The market price of investments owned by the Senes Trust and securities held by the Selected Fund may go up or
down, sometimes rapidy of unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets
generally or particular industries reprasented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to
general market conditions which are not specifically related to a paricular company, such as real or perceived
adverze economic condtions, supply and demand for paricular securities o instrurments, changes in the general
outiook for corporate eamings, changes in interest or cumency rates or adverse investor sentiment. They may also
decine due to factors which affect a particular industry or indusiries, such as labor shortages or increased production
costs and competitve condibons within an industry. During a general downtum in the securities markets, multiple
asset casses may decling in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed
income securites,

An increase in market prices of the investment in the Selected Fund of 1% at December 31, 2024 and December 31,
2023, would have increasad the total equety by 34, 708,311 and 34,240,381, respectively. A decrease of 1% would, all
elze being equal, have an equal but opposite effect

The following table summanzes the geographical concentration in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at
December 31, 2024 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fadr Yalue % of Met Assels
Inwestments In secwrities

Arganting £ 3335013 0.5%
Aasstradia 15T 558 1%
Canada 2894 312 05%
Cayrnan Elans 20A51 160 4
Frames W T4E 26T 2.1%
Germmary 1,127 569 02 %
Iradand 12545 337 2.6%
rasd 33035 0T%
Haty 1,335, TEa 0.3%
Jipian 1750454 0.3%
Luembourg THETE 1 6%
M i 10902 317 2.2%
Msthariands 2343933 0.5%
Fard 4,325,005 0. 9%
Ramania 1,890,053 0.4%
South Afnca £ 157 Ofd 0.8%
Spain 5,332,027 (i
Sl erland 5057 976 1 0%
Turkdy 4,274 260 0.59%
Ursted Arab Emralss 356,643 0. 1%
Uratéd Kingdiom 320753179 5.3%
Uriled States 483,103 067 il ’fﬁ
Total investrment in securities § 613,142 375 123.7%
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The fdlewing table summarnzes the geographical concentraton in market price risk of the Selected Fund's at
December 31, 2023 as a percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Country Name Fair Valus 9% of Het Azgels
Investments in securities

Arpanting 1 1271458 0 3%
Astralia 443,751 0. 1%
Barmiida 302 491 0. 1%
Cayman lslands 12,347 566 2.9%
Cypns 1,637 573 0.4%
Firdand 181 7 05%
Fram:g 11568179 2. T%
Germmany 1090 218 10.3%
Enedand 10652 550 2.5%
lerasl 54265 580 1.3%
Haky 1,750 548 0.4%
Jipen 1,322 848 0. 3%
Luxembourg 8430072 2 1%
I iy & 330 734 1.0%:
Madrartands 1374058 10.3%
Fanama 115204 0.4%
Fard 143 655 00
Romiania 137 0.3%
Russia 00"
Souin Afnca 5557 g0 1500
Egain 4403 GES 1.0%
Sz erand 5550 870 1.3%
Turkay 35T B0D 009
Ureted Kingdom AT 53T 0o & U
Lirstad Siafes 480,315 S60 113.3%
Total investmant in securities 1 04 56T 062 142.6%

* & zem balance may reflect emourt s rownding to less than 0.05%

{B) Credit Risk

Changes in an isswer's credst rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of
the Senes Trust's investrment in that issuer. The degres of cradit risk depends on bath the inancial condition of the
issuer and the tesms of the obligation.

Due b2 itz imvestment in the Selected Fund, the Seres Trust s exposed to the credit risk associated with debt
instruments that may be held by the Selected Fund. All trangactions in listed securties held by the Selected Fund are
setled'paid for upon delivery wsing approved brokers. The sk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of
securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment iz made on a purchase once the
securties have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their cbligation.

The Irvestrnent Manager monilors the Seres Trust's credit posiion on an on-going basis.

The maxirmum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets of the Series Trust as of Decermber 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, is the carrying amounts as shown on the Statement of Financial Position. No colisteral or cther
credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these assels are impaired or past due,

The clearing and depository operations for the Selected Fund's security transactions are nnainly concentrated with the

Custodian. Al December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 substantially all cash and cash equivalents and
investments are placed in custody with the Custodian, with a Fitch credit rating of A+
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The fllowing table summanezes the credit quality of the Selected Funds debt portfilio at December 31, 2024 as
a percentage of net assets of the Selecled Fund.

Rating® % of Net Assets
] 19.1%
Aal 1.4%
Agl 0%
A3 107%
Al 7 9%
A2 4%
Al 265
Baal iM%
Baa 1 5%
Blaak 4.3%
Bat 0.7
Ba2 1.0%:
Ba3 1.2%
B1 210496
B2 0.5%
B3 1.7%
Caal 0.1%
Caal 0.5%
Caad 18%
ca 2 1%
C 1.8%
MR 8 4%
WwWh 0 &%
123.7%

*Secunly ratings, It any ane oblaned from Moody s/ S4P o FRch's nvestor Senvdice
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The fllowing table summanzes the credit quality of the Selected Funds debt portfclio at December 31, 2023 as
percentage of net assets of the Selected Fund.

Rating® ¥ of Net Assets
g 16.1%
Aat 16%
Agl 0.3%
F.¥ ] 0:3%
Al by
A2 26%
Al 4 5%
Baal 2 5%
Baa 2 2.1%
Blaak 14%
Bal 0.3%
Bal 17
Ba3 T 4%
B1 1%
B2 2 1%
B3 2.3%
Caal 0 4%
Caal 14%
Caad 2 8%
ca 2. 1%
C 11%
MR 16 5%
R 0.7
142.6%

*Sacunby rédingd, If any. ate oblandd from Moody' 3/ SEP 9 Fich's investar Sanace

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquickty risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Sedes Trust's investments in
illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the iliquid securities at
an advantagecus time or price. To the extent that the Sedes Trust's principal investment sirategies invohe
derivatives or securties with substantial market andlor credit risk, the Series Trust will tend to have the greatest
exposure to liquidty risk.

The tables below analyze the Senes Trust's financial Eabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undizcounted cazh flows.

AR December 31, 2024 Legs than 1 month 1 -3 mankhe Tatal

Payabiles for
Purchase of irvéstment in the Selected Fund $ 5,207 419 z a £ GR07T 419
Fee agant leas Ti5em = ITeaNn
Irvestment managemant fees §33403 - B33 403
Urnds séplrchassd 505,085 - 503,068
Oirganzation fees 137,250 - 137,254
Fnnting faes i, 550 - 10 550
Distibuticn fees 2 540 - 5840
Adrmimsbraton fees 47 3509 - 47 368
Prfessional fess 3564 - 38564
Custody fees 19,063 - 149 060
Agert member company kes 11,516 - 11,516
T ransfler agant feas 0,955 - LER=p
RagHration fess 487 - 452

Contractual cash out flows § §188184 § = 5 9,168 184
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At December 31, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 -3 months Tatal

Payabilig bor
Furchase of investment in the Sefected Fund 5 1,555,962 ¥ = -] 1,855,862
Fee agant leas 708,355 - TG, B55
Irvastment management lBes S79.178 - 58,178
Uings repurchasad 185,456 - 1554585
Crganization fas 137,258 - 137,254
Prrrdineg Sk 103, 380 = 103 380
Distioution es 89,335 - EO B35
Cusiody lees 63,302 - 63,343
Administrator fees 443N - 44 3M
Pratessaonal feds an.7e2 = 20,762
Agert member company kes 10,531 - 10,531
Trantlor @gant loos 4 213 - 4213
Fragstrabion lees 521 - 74|

Contractual cash out flows § 4816 § - § 814 816

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's Bquidity position on an on-geing basis.
Ligquickty risk is managed by investing no more than 15% ofthe Net Asset Value in illiquid assets.

Theres were no Series Trust's dervabive financial instruments 8t December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 with
gross setlement,

Due bo itz investment in the Selected Fund, the Series Trust is exposed to the liguidity risk associated with unitholder
repurchases in accordance with the terms in the Selected Fund's Prospectus. The Series Trust is managed to include
liquid investments sufficient to meet normal liquidity needs although substantial repurchases of Units in the Series
Trust could require the Selected Fund to liquidate its investments mora rapidly than otherwise desirable in order to
raise cash for the repurchases. These fctors could adversaly affect the value of the units repurchased and the
valuation of the units that remain outstanding and the liquidty of the Series Trust's remaining assels if maore liguid
assets have been sold to meet the repurchases.

Thers ware no repurehase fees applisd in respect o the Selected Fund for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023,

(D) Risk Managenyent
The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by cerain risk management systerms and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quanttative risk measures.

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units,
The ameount of net aseets attributable to the holder of redeemabie units can change significantly on a daily basis as
the Series Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series
Trust's objectve when managing capital is to safeguard the Senes Trust's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the development of the investment activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Series Trust's policy is to perform the following:

*  Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of redeemable units,

=  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional docurments of the Series Trust.
The Manager monftors capital on the basis of the value of net assets atinbutable to the holder of redeemable units.
5.2 Additional Serles Trust's Risks

{A) Custody Risk

Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Sedes Trust= entire holding of indirect
investments. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firns selected to act as custodians may become insobvent,
causing the Series Trust ta lose all or a portion of the funds or securities hald by those custodians.
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(B) Risk of Indemnification
The Trustes, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and afilkates are entiled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may resull in a decrease in Met Asset Value per unit,

(C) Settlermnent Risk
Settlement and clearance procedures in cerain foreign markets differ significantty from those in the United States,
the Ewcpean Union and Japan. Foreign setflement and clearance procedures and trade regulations may alse invalve
certain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) not typically associated with the setfement of
United States investments. Al imes, settements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
secunties transactions. These problemns may make & dificult for the Selected Fund and ultimately, the Manager to
cary out transactons for the account of the Seres Trust,

If the Manager canmot settle o is delayed in sefting a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment
opportunities and some of the Seres Trust's assets may be wninvested with no returm eamed therecn for some
periad. If the Selected Fund and ulimataly, the Manager cannot seftle or is delayed in setting a sale of securies, the
Series Trust may loze money if the value of the underlying security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the
secunty to ancther party, the Series Trust could be liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derrvative instruments to hedge the Seres Trust's imvestments or to seek to enhance the
Series Trust's retums. Derivatives allow the risk exposure of the Series Trust to increase or decrease more quickly
and efficiently than other types ofinstruments. Derivatives are volatile and invohve significant risks, including:

= Credit Risk — the risk that the counterparty (the party on the other side of the transaction) on a dervative
transaction will be unable to honor its financial cbligation to the Series Trust.

*  Leverage Risk — the risk associated with cerain types of invesiments or trading sirategies that refativety
small market movements may result in large changes in the value of an investment. Certain investments or
trading strategies that involve leverage can result in losses that greatty exceed the amount origmally
inveshed,

*  Liguidity Risk — the risk that cerain securities may be dificult or impossible to sell at the time that the seller
weuld ike or at the price that the seller believes the sacurity is currently worth,

The Manager may use derivatives for hedging purposes for the Sedes Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is a strategy in which the Manager uses a dernivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trust's holdings.
\While hedging can reduce losses, it can also reduce or sliminate gains or cause losses if the market moves in
a manner different fram that anticipated by the Manager or if the cost of the dervative cutweighs the benefit of the
hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the dervative will not match those of the holdings
being hedged as expected by the Manager, in which caze any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There iz no assurance that the Series Trust's hedging strategy will reduce risk or
that hedging transactions are either avadable or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hedging for the
Series Trust and may choose not to do s0. Because the Manager may use derivatives to seek to enhance the Series
Trust's returns, i= imvestments will expose the Series Trust to the risks cutlined above to a greaber extent than if the
Manager used derivatives solely for hedging purposes. Use of dervvatives ko seek to enhance retumns is considered
speculative.

Az of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 there were no Senes Trust dervative aszets and dervative
liabilities subject to netting amrangements and similar amangements.

(E) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institubions and counterparties, including banks and brokerage frms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Manager or its delegate rades or invests for the account of the Seres Trust, may encounter Snancial diffculties
and default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such defaulk could result in
material losses to the Series Trust. In addtion, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust
to the countarparties in order to secure certain transactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the
year ended December 31, 2024,

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assets or financial liakdities in the Statement of Financial Position,
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{F)} Generated Income and Distributions

Thers is no guarantes that there will be any Generated Income. Distributions (if any) may be paid in whole o in part
out of inwvestment principal attributable to the units or, alternatively, the Generated Income may be zero. A distribution
can in effect result in & return of an investor's initial capital or capital gains thereby eroding that capital to the extent
the destribution excesds available income. In consequence of this possibilty, investors sesking capstal preservation
may not achieve this given probable deterioration in the value of the Series Trust's imvestments caused by declining
asset values and a return of capital to investors by way of distribution. If the Series Trust i= not profitable, the
Regurchase Price a unitholder receives back in respect of a repurchase of units may be less than the unitholdar's
initial investment.

The Generated Income partially relies on the receipt of distributions paid by the Selected Fund. Should the Selected
Fund fail to pay any distibutions or pay less than anticipated, including due to a rise in the non-treaty tax rate
applicable to the Series Trust, then the Seres Trust may gain comespondingly less than investors may have
previously expected. Furthesmaore, if the interest rate at which the distributions received/accrued falls during the
yearly pericd, this may also lead to the Generated Income being lower than expected.

{G) No Interest in the Selected Fund
The retum on the units depends, amongst other things, on the performance of the Selected Fund. An investment in
units does not give a unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Fund.

(H) Early Termination of the Serles Trust
Althvough the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2183, the Final Repurchaze

Dy will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur,

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Sedies Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standard 13 Fair value measurement and utilizes the last traded market
price for its fair valustion inputs for both Bnancial assets and liabdibes.

An active market i5 @ market in which transactions for the asse! or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
velurie 1o provide pricing infarmation on an ongoing basis,

The fair value of nancial assets and liabdties that are not traded in an active market i determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a vanety of mathods and makes assumptions that are based on market condiions
existing at each pericd end date. Valuation technigues used for non-standardized Enancial imstruments such as
options, currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, apbion
pricmg models and other valuation techniques commenty used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and redying as Btle sz poscibie on entity-specific inputs,

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Seres Trust may use internally developed models, which are
usually based en valuation mathods and technigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated bazed on assumptions. The
ocutput of a model is always an estimabe or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation technigues employed may not fully reflect all faclors relevant to the positions the Series Trust holds.
Valustions are therefore adusted, whers appropriate, to allow for addtionsl factors incuding model nsk, lquidity nsk
and counterparty risk.

The Senes Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measuremants_

The fair value hisrarchy has the following levels:

= Lewel 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in actve markets for identical assets or liabilies that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs ofher than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsenable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indrectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or Babllity.

Fi]
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The kevel in the fair value hierarchy within which the fir value measurement iz categorized in its entirety
it determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fir value measurement in #s entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adustment based on uncbservable inputs, that
measurement i a Level 3 arment. A ing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measwrement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or lability.

The determinabon of what consttutes 'cbservable’ requires sgnificant judgment by the Admimstrator, wnder
advisement of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, considers cbservable data to be
that market data that is readiy available, regularky distributed or updated, refiable and verifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively imvolved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations accarding to the inputs used as of December 31, 2024 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted) Quoted Significant Signdficant
Prices In Active Cther Unebszervable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets Tor IdenticM Dbawrabls Inputs Ea: e S8
Value Through Profit or Loss Investments [Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) (Lewel 3) December 31, 2024
Investment in the Selected Fund
FIMCD Bamuda Low Duration
ncome Fund, Class B (USD Class) § - & 470831106 § - § 470,831,106
Financial assets, ot fair value
thraugh profit or loss % - & ATDB31 106 § - § 4T0 831 106

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of December 31, 2023 in valuing the
Series Trust's inancial assets:

{Unadjuated] Cueted Significant Sgnificant
Prices In Active Cther Unobservable

Financial Assets at Fair Markets Far Identical Observable Inputs Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss Inwestments (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) {Lewel 3) Decemnber 31, 2023
Investment In the Selected Fund

PIMCD Bermuda Low Duraticn

ncome Fund, Class B (USD Class) § - § 424 D3E0AT § - § 424 038 087
Financial assets, at fair value

thraugh profit or loss § - & 424 030,067 % " 424 038 03T

Curing the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3.

Financial imstruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or allemative pricing sources supponed by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securities. As Level 2 investments include posiions that
ara not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restricions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquickty andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

For purposes of calculating the NAV of the Selected Fund, fxed income secunties for which market quotes are
readity gvaillable are normally valued on the basis of quotes obtained from established market makers of pricing
senvices and are classified as Level 2 investrents in the Snancial statements of the Selected Fund. Forward
confracts are valued using observable inputs which can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore
classified as Level 2 investrents in the Snancial statements of the Selected Fund, As of December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 all financial assets and liabilities were classified as Level 2 investments.

Financlal assets and liabllities not carried at falr value through profit or loss
i) A December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 cash and cash equivalents and all cther assets and
liabilities {(including receivabies for units issued, sale of investment in the Selected Fund and payables for
purchase aof irvestment in the Selected Fund, fee agent fees, investment management fees, unils

repurchased, distribution fees, organization fees, administrator fees, printing fees, custody fees, professional
fees, transfer agent fees, agent member company fees and registration fees) are deemed short-term

24
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financial assets and labilies whose carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term
nature. Refer to Note 2 for a descnption of the valuation techniques.

3.4 Investments in unconsclidated structured entities

Az of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Selected Fund's net asset value was 5500457 648 and
$473 993,745, respectively. As of December 31, 2024 the Selected Fund held total investments of 5711, 4888975
compeising of ixed income securities {(agency bonds, asset backed securities, bank lcan obligations, commercial real
estale equities, corporate bonds and noles, equity secunbes modgage-backed sacunties, soveresgn issues, LS.
government agencies, U.S. treasury cbigations and wamants) of $618, 142,375, short-term instruments {corporate
bonds and noles, repurchasze agreements, soveresgn issues, 5. treasury obligations and time deposits) of
368,708,526, fulures contracts of 3256487, forwards contracts of 31,2084 235, swaps contracts of 322558 986,
written options contracts of 5(393,537) and written swaptions of 3(71,087).

Az of December 31, 2023 the Selected Fund held total investments of 5638,845247 comprising of fived income
securities (agency bonds. asset backed-securities, bank loan obligations, cormmercial real estate equities. corporate
bonds and notes, equity securiies, mortgage-backed securities, sovereign issues, U.5. govemment agencies and
U.5. treasury obligations) of $604,557,062, shod-term instrumentz (ime deposits and government issue) of
$19.920,471, futures contracts of $(1,927.462), forwards contracts of 3(1,172,978), swaps contracts of 317,880,715,
written options contracts of 5(39, 008) and written swaptions of ${273,555).

The valuation of investrments in unconsolicated strectured entties represents the amount the Series Trust would
expect to receive if it were to liquidated or redeem its investments subject to the underlying fund's liquidity or
redemplion restrictions and costs,

The rights attached to the Series Trusts holding in the Selected Fund is similar to those of cther investors.
Subscriptions into the Selected Fund are governed by the rights stipulated in their offering documents. The Series
Trust has the abity to liquidate or redeem its investments periodically in accordance with the provisions of the
respective fund agreements. Refer to Mote 1 for information regarding the investment objectives of the Selected
Fumd.

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward Contracts

The Imsestment Manager for the Selected Fund enters into forward contracts for the Selected Fund by buying forward
contracts, under normal circumstances in an ameount equal, to the extent possible, to approximately 100% of the USD
exposure of the Met Asset Value (excluding unrealized cumency gain or losses).

The Irvestrment Manager antess into forward contracts for the Series Trust by buying farward contracts.

Az of December 31, 2024 and Decerber 31, 2023, there were no open forward contracts in the Series Trust
7. NET GAIN/(LOSE) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSE

December 31, 204 December 31, 2023

Mt gain on hnanaal essets and lisbities al Tar value
hraugh prot] and ss condeil af thd Tallewing

Net reatmed gan on in'estmants in the Seleded Fund § 5 805427 i £ 153 1285
Total net realized gain on fnancal assets and laiplibes at fair
valug through profit or toss 5 5805427 ] 5 153,185

Moverment in et unrealized appreciation on mvestments in

thip Sefacted Fund - 24 BT0LT3ET £ AT, 253 M6
Total net changs in urrsazed appreciation on inancial assels
and babdibes af B valoe through prol o loss £ 24 8707157 i A7 253 040
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&. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(&) Administrator Feas

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.07% on the first LSS500 millicn of the net assets, 0.06% on the next
UES500 millicn of the net assets and 0.05% on the net assets over U551 billion, subject to a monthby minirmum fee of
$3,750. The fees earned by the Administrator duning the years ended Decermnber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
and outstanding fees payable to the Administrator as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehenszive Income and the Staternent of Financial Posiion, respectively.

(B) Custody Fees

The Custodian receives an annual fee of 0.025% of Net Assets Value. The fees eamed by the Custodian during the
years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of
Decamber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
the Staternent of Financial Position, respectively.

(C) Distribution Fees

The Cistributor receives an annual fee of 0.25% of the Met Asset Value payable monthly in amears. The Distnbution
Fees are payable by the Admimistrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust, The fees
eamed by the Distributor duning the years ended Decernber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and outstanding fees
payable to the Distributor as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Staternent of
Comgprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

(D) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Met Asset Value. The fees eamed by the Transfer Agent
during the years ended December 31, 2024 and Decembar 31, 2023, and cutstanding fees payable to the Transfer
Agent as December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been disclozed in the Staternent of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the years ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of December 31, 2024 and December
31, 2023 have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position,
respactively.

8.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party or exercise signiScant
influence over the cther party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and
Agent Member Company are all related parties to the Series Trust.

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(&) Tristee Fees
The Trustes is enttled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee a fixed annual fee of 310,000 payable annually in
advance. The fees eamed by the Trustee during the vears ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and
cutstanding fees payable to the Trustee as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been disclosed in
the Saternent of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent
fees.

(B) Investment Management Fees

The Imsestment Manager receives an annual fee of 0.55% of the Met Asset Value payable quarterdy in arrears.
The fees eamed by the Investment Manager during the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
and outstanding fees payable to the Investmaent Manager as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 have
been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehenaive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

(C) Fee Agent Fees
The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Met Assets Value (the *Operational Costs Fees®) and 0.55% of

Met Asszets Value (the “Sales Administrative Fees®), accrued on and calculated sz at each valuation day.
The Operatiocnal Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees are paid by the Adminiztrator, on behalf of the

M6
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Trustee out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Fee Agent dunng the years ended December
31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and cutstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, have been dsclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Inceme and the Statement of Financial
Position, respectively,

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in
the reazonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and
Trustee Faes (the "Ordinary Cosls®).

For the aveoidance of doubt the Fee Agent is mot responsible for the payment of the Sales Administrative Fees,
investment manager fees, audit foes. formation expenses, distribution fees, administration fees. custody fees. any
broker fees relating to secunty transactions, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audt fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust to government bodies and agencies, anmy
insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and Appendix 31 and other smilar offering
documents and the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and amy
taxes relating to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reposting,
anti-money laundering compliance and meonitoring, expenses related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series
Truwst and any other extraordinary costs and expenses that would not usually occur,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is not suffcent to cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fes Agent is able for
any outstanding amounts, Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retained by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acting as fee agent in respect of the Series Trusd.

The Cperational Costs Fees and the Sales Administrative Fees accrue daily on an actual /' 385 day count fraction
basis and are payable quartedy in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first accrual period only,
the initial closing day, and for all other accrual periods, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(D) Manager Fees

The Manager is entithed to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, a management fee of 55,000 per annum payable
menthly in arears. The fees samed by the Manager dufing the yvears ended Decermber 31, 2024 and Dacember 31,
2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Manager as of Decernber 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, have been
ds;lumd in the Statement of Comprahensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part
of fee agent fees.

{E} Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entiled to receve a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value payable
quarterly in amears. The Agent Member Company Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager cut
of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member Company during the years ended December
31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and culstandng fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of Decemnber 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive income and the Staternent of
Financial Position, respectively,

9. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may bomow up to 10% of itz Met Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows, During
the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Series Trust did not incur any bommowings.

10, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Trustee has evaluated all subzequent transactions and events through April 28, 2025, the date on which these
financial statements were available o be [ssued. Effectve January 1. 2025 through Aprl 29, 2025 there were

subscriptions of 345,770,691 and repurchases of 319,766,082, There are no other subsequent events to report as
relates to the Sefes Trust.

a7
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2025
515,773,909.10 73,533,886,220
5,136,916.73 732,370,218
510,636,992.37 72,801,516,002
4,427,623
115.33 16,443
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2025

2,001,815,920

10,861,762

15 74,961,490

37,577,517,521

2,592,881,155

14 102,705,738,432
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
4 170,000 24,237 185,000 26,375
4 62,322 8,885 60,009 8,555
232,322 33,122 245,009 34,931
4,340 619 6,390 911
9(c) 107,053 15,263 108,643 15,489
5,015 715 48 7
116,408 16,596 115,081 16,407
115,914 16,526 129,928 18,524
5 - - - -
115,914 16,526 129,928 18,524
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
7 170,000 24,237 185,000 26,375
9(a) 864 123 864 123
6 1,955,991 278,866 2,249,019 320,643
2,126,855 303,226 2,434,883 347,141
9(b) 23,303 3,322 16,752 2,388
- - 428,396 61,076
4,339 619 6,436 918
27,642 3,941 451,584 64,382
2,099,213 299,285 1,983,299 282,759
8 735,000 104,789 735,000 104,789
1,364,213 194,496 1,248,299 177,970
2,099,213 299,285 1,983,299 282,759

Nicolas Henri Jean Papavoine
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2024 12 31

2023 735,000 104,789 1,118,371 159,446 1,853,371 264,235
- - 129,928 18,524 129,928 18,524

Sz 12 3 735,000 104,789 1,248,299 177,970 1,983,299 282,759
§ § 115,914 16,526 115,914 16,526

2024 12 31 735,000 104,789 1,364,213 194,496 2,009,213 299,285
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2024 2023
115,914 16,526 129,928 18,524
(62,436) (8,902) (60,034) (8,559)

53,478 7,624 69,894 9,965
15,000 2,139 20,000 2,851
6,551 934 (313,301) (44,667)
(428,396) (61,076) 428,39 61,076
(2,097) (299) 37 )
(355, 464) (50,679) 204,952 29,220
62,436 8,902 60,034 8,559
(293,028) 41,777) 264,986 37,779
(293,028) 41,777) 264,986 37,779

2,249,019 320,643 1,984,033 282,864

1,955,991 278,866 2,249,019 320,643

1,955,991 278,866 2,249,019 320,643
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Cap.22
2000
KY1-1104 309
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37 5.1

2023 12
2024 31

2024
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2024 12 31

2024 2023
170,000 185,000
62,436 60,034
(114) (25)
62,322 60,009

2019 10 10 20

2024 2023

1,955,991 2,249,019
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170,000 185,000
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAMN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mates 2024 2023
UsD UsD
REVENUE
Management fee income 4 170,000 185,000
Other incomes 4 652,322 60. 009
232322 245,009
EXPENSES
Audit fee 4340 6,390
Directors’ fee S(c) 107 053 108,643
Other expenses 5015 48
TOTAL EXPENSES 116,408 115081
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 115,914 120,928
Tax expense 5 = -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 115,914 120,928

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
{An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
usD uso
ASSETS
Management fee receivable 7 170,000 185,000
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary 8(a) 864 864
Cash and cash eguivalents <] 1,965,081 2,249,018
Total assets 2,126,855 2,434 BB3
LIABILITIES
Amount due to an immediate holding company 8(b) 23,303 16,752
Directors’ fee payable - 428,396
Accruals 4,339 6,436
Total liabilities 27,642 451,584
NET ASSETS 2,099,213 1,983,299
EQUITY
Share capital B 735,000 735,000
Retained profits 1,364,213 1,248,288
Total equity 2,089,213 1,983,299

Micolas Hgfiri Jean Fapavoine
Direct

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of these financial statements.
4
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IM EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Share Retained

capital profits Total

uspo usD Uso

At 1 January 2023 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,3T1
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 129,928 129,928

At 31 Decemnber 2023 and 1 January 2024 735,000 1,248,293 1,983,299
Prafit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year - 115.914 115,914

At 31 December 2024 735,000 1,364,213 2,088,213
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAN) LIMITED
(An exempled company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Gability)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Mote 2024 2023
usD usD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 115914 129928
Adjustments for:
Interest income (62,436} 160,034)
53,478 CERER
Decrease in management fee recenvable 15,000 20,000
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an immediate
holding company 6,551 {313,301}
{Decrease)/ increase in directors” fee payable (428,398) 428 396
Decrease in accruals {2.087) (37}
Cash (used in)generated from operating aclivities (355, 464) 204 952
Interest income received 62,436 0034
Met cash flows (used in)fgensrated
from operating activities (293.028) 264 986
NET ([DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (293,028) 264 986
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,249 018 1,984,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,955,991 2.249.019
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 6 1,853,981 2,248 018

The accompanying note form an integral part of these financial statements.
&
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Bability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

g CORPORATE INFORMATION

UBS Management {(Cayman) Limited (the “*Company’) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 January 2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands. The Company's registered office is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY 1-1104,
Cayman Islands.

The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration and
management of assels in trusts.

on 12 June 2023, UBS Group AG acquired Credit Suisse Group AG, succeading by
operation of Swiss law o all assels and liabilities of Credit Suisse Group AG, and became
the direct or indirect shareholder of all of the former drect and indirect subsidiaries of Credit
Suisse Group AG (the “Transaction”). The Company was one of the indirect subsidiaries of
Credit Suisse Group AG included in this Transaction,

Upeon the completion of the Transaction, each oulstanding, registered Credit Suisse share
converted ta the right to receive, subject to the payment of certain fees to the Credit Suisse
depository in the case of Credit Suisse American depository shares, the merger
consideration consisting of /22428 UBS Group AG shares. In aggregate, Credit Suisse
shareholders received 5.1% of the cutstanding UBS Group AG shares on the acquisition
date, with a purchase price of USD3.7 billion,

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBES Group AG approved the merger of UBS
AG and Credit Suisse AG, and bath entities entered into a definitive merger agreement, The
merger is completed on 31 May 2024,

On 1 March 2024, the Beard of Directors has approved to change the name from Credit
Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited) to UBS Management (Cayman) Limited.

The ultimate holding company is UBS Group AG, & company incorporated in Switzerdand.
The directors regarded Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited as the immediate holding
company and UBS AG as the intermediate holding company.

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by Intermnational Accounting Standards Beard ("|ASE’). These
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for inanciel assets
and liabilities held at fair value through profit o loss, which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards
requires management to meke judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of poficies and reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses, The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis of making the judgements about camying values of assets and liablities that are
mot readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

21  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars ("USD™) and all values are
rounded tothe nearest USD, except where otherwise indicated.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in order of liquidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items.

Certain prior pericd comparative figures are reclassified to conform with current vear
presentation.

22  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting principles adopted in the current period are consistent with those of the prior
year, There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that
are effective for the current financial period that have a material impact on the Company.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2024 in these financial satements. Among the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards,
the following is expected to be relevant to the Company's financial statements upon
becoming effective:

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the 1ASE issued IFRS 18, which replaces 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial
Stafernents. IFRS 18 intreduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of
profit or loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Furtthermore, entities are required to
classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss inte one of five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial informalion based on the identified ‘roles’ of the pimary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes,

In addition, narow-scope amendments have been made (o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under
the indirect method, from 'profit or loss” o ‘operating profit o |oss' and remowving the
optionality around classification of cash flews from dividends and interest, In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards, IFRS 18, and the amendments
tothe other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively.

The Company is currentty working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the
primary financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to |1AS 21

In August 2023, the |ASE issued amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foregn
Exchange Rates to specify how an enfity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial
statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency
affects, or is expected toaffect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash
flows.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025, Early adoption is permitted. but will need to be disclosed, When applying the
amendments, an entity cannol restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial
statements.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if;
a) The party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person.
il has contrad or joint control over the Company,
i) has significant influence over the Company; or
i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company;

b} The party is an entity where any of the following condition applies:

i} the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

ii) one entity is an associate or joint ventures of the ather entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

ilij} the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the same third parly,

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and cther entity is an associate of the
third entity;

v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of empioyees of either
the Company or an entity related to the Company,

wi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

vii) a person identified in (a)ii) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
ofthe key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

wiii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pard, provides key
management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the
Company,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posttion comprise cash on hand and
at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
meonths that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting short- berm cash commitments.

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, and shaor-term depeosits, as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9. the Company classifies its financial assets and financial
[iabilities at initial recognition into the categories of inancial assets and financial liabilities
discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset of financial liability is considered to be

held for trading if;

{a)lt is acquired or mcurmred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near tem, or

(b)Cn initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattermn of short-
term profit-taking, or

(chlit is a derivative (edcept for a dervative that is a financial guarantes contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrurment)

Financial assels

The Company classifies its financial assets as subseguently measured at amortised cost
or measured at FWVPL on the basis of both:

+ The entity's business model for managing the financial assets

+ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business rmodel
whose chjective is to hold financial assets in order o collect contractual cash flows and
its contraciual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soledy payments
of principal and interest ("SPPI") an the principal amount cutstanding. The Company
includes in this category shod-term non-financing receiables.

ancial assets measired al fair va hrough profit or lass CFVP

Afinancial assel is measured at FWPL if:

(a)lts contractual terms do not give nise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPFI
on the principal amount cutstanding; o

(L)t is not held within a business model whose objective is either (o collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

{chAL initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FWYPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would ctherwise arise from measuring assels or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases.

10
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
(i} Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial abilities measured at FVPL

A financial Bability is measured at FVPL if it mests the definition of held for trading or is
designated as measured at FWPL upon initial recognition.

Financial labilities measured at amortised cost
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FAVPL, The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term payables.

(il) Recognition
The Coempany recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date. i.e., the date that the Company commis to purchase
or sell the assel,

(iii} Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial hiabilties at far value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments
are recognised directly in profit o loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial babiliies (other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus amy directly attributable
incremental costs of acguisition or issue.

(iv) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures fimancial instruments which are
classified as at fair value through profit or loss at fair value, Subsequent changes in the
fair value of those financial instruments are recorded in net gains of losses on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Interest and dividends earned or paid on these instruments are
recorded separately in interest income or expense and dividend income or expense in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair value through profit of loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments
cost are derecognised of impaired, as well as through the amaortisation process.

1"
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited Rability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Subsequent measurement (continuad)

The effective interest method ("EIR™) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financal asset o a financial liabilty and of allocating the interest income of interest
expense over the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument o, when appropriate, a shorter year to the net carndng amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates cash flows considering all contractusl terms of the financial
instruments. but does not consider expected credit losses ("ECL"). The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and all other premiums of discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A, financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:
+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass through” arangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assat.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered inte & “pass-through" arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset,
the assel is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The fransferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on & basis that reflects the rights and
cbligations that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

12
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company holds only short-termn receivables with no financing component and which
have maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply
an approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses ("ECL™) under IFRS
9 to all its receivables. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. but
instead, recoanises a [oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Company's approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted cutcome, the time value of
meney and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effert at the reporting date about past events, curent conditions and forecasts of fulure
economic conditions.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLS on
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of recelvables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision malrix is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adusted for forward-
looking estimates.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures s investment in financial instruments at fair value at each repoding
dale,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
of transfer the liability takes place either in the princpal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tothe Company.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based
on their market gqucted price within the bidfask price or broker quatations which could be
indicative prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. Secunties defined in these
accounts as listed’ are traded in an active market,

For all other financial instrurments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined
by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation
technigues include the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market fransactions
adusied as necessary and reference tothe current market value of ancther instrument that
is substantially the same) and the income appreach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and
oplion pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as
possible).
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 - Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
wvalue measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing the categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the beginning of each reporting peried,

Erovisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future cutfiow of rescurces will be required to
settle the ocbligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting perod of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the chligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

MILIE F iti
Reveniue from confracts with clients
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entiled in exchange for those goods or services,

(a) Management fee
Management fee income is recognised over time because the customer simultanecusly
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
apphing the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial insirument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net camying
amount of the financial asset,

i ional
These financial statements are presented in United States dollar, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

14
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of
the reporting unit at the spat exchange rate on the date of the transadtion. At the end of the
reporting pericd, all monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
translated to the functional currency using the closing exchange rate. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary tems are recognised in profit or loss.

Meon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency shall
be translated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary
iterns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was measured The gain or loss arising on franslation of a
non-manetary iterm measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on change in fair value of the item.

Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.

4. REVEMUE AND OTHER INCOMES

The principal activities of the Company are the creation of frusts and the administration and
management of assets in trusts. Total revenue and other income recognised during the year

are as follows:
2024
ush

Revenue:
Management fee income

2023
usD

170,000 185.000

Other incomes include the following:

Bank interest income 62 436 60,034
Foreign exchange differences, net (114} (25)
52,322 60,009

The performance cbligation for management fee income is satisfied over lime as sernvices

are rendered,

a TAXATION

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands and the Company has received
an undertaking from the Governor in Council of the Cayman Islands exempling it from all
local income, profits and capital taxes for a period of 20 vears from 10 October 2015,

Accordingly, no provision for income faxes is included in these financial statements,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

B. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALIENTS

2024 2023
UsD UsD
Cash at bank 1,955,991 2.249.019

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The camying
amount of the cash at bank approximate to their fair values.

T MANAGEMEMNT FEE RECEIVAELES

2024 2023
uso usD
Management fed receivables 170,000 185000

Meone of the above assets is either past due or impaired, The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default,

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
UsD usD
Izsued and fully paid:
735000 (2023: 735,000) ordinary shares
of USD1 (2023 USD1) each 735,000 735.000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied torecenve dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ondinary
shares rank egqually with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital management

The Company’s primary cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concermn so that it can continue to provide retumns to
shareholders, by pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the
Company's sources of additional capital and pdlicies for distribution of excess capital may
also be affected by the group’s capital management objectives. The Company defines
“capital” as including all components of equity,

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the group to which the Company belongs, Adjustments are
made to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Company of the group, to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’ fiduciary
duties towards the Comparny.

The Company was not sublect to externally imposed capital requirements in the current
period,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considerad to be related if cne party has the ability to contrd the cther party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Qutstanding balances with related partles
The Company has the following cutstanding balances due fromfitc) related companies as at

the end of reporing period:
Moles 2024 2023
usD usD
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary {a) 864 564
Amount due to an immediate holding company (B (23.303) {16,752)

(&) The amount due from a fellow subsidiary represents expenses paid by the Company on
behalf of Credit Suisse (Singapore) Limited. It is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

(by The amount due to an immediate holding company represents expenses paid by Credit
Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited on behalf of the Company. It is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Transactions with related parties
Except as disdosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had the following matenal transactions with related paries:

Motes 2024 2023
uso usD

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Company ic) 107,053 108,643

{c) The details of the remuneration of the directors, being the key management personnel
defined as a related party of the Company

17
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's investing activities expose it bo various types of risk that are asscciated with
the financial instrumenis and markets in which it invests. The most impotdant types of
financial risk to which the Company is exposed are market risk, credit and counterparty risk
and Bquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
directors oversee the management of these risks.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the end of reporting period
and the risk management palicies empleyed by the Company are discussed below.

(&) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from uncertainty conceming moverments in market
prices and rates, including cbservable variables such as interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and others that may be only indirectly observable such as volatilities
and correlations. Market risk includes such factors as changes in economic
emnvironment, consumption pattern and investors' expectation etc. which may have
significant impact on the value of the investments. Market moverment may therefore
result in substantial fluctuation in the financial posifion of the Company,

Foreign cumency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through certain transactions
which give rise to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Since the Hong
Kong Dollars is pegged to the USD, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk
in respect of the invoices and expenses denominated in USD is considered to be
minimal,

Interest rale risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk only to the extent that it earns bank
interest on cash at bank. At 31 December 2024 and 2023, a change in interest rates
would have no direct material effect on the carnying value of the recognised assets or
lizbalities of the Company.

(by Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nsk of loss resulting from client o counterparty
default and arises on credit exposure in all forms, including seftlement risk. The
Company's credit and counterparty risk is primarily atiributable (o cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from related companies. The Company's management
regularly menitors the credit and counterparty risk of all the financial assets. It is
considered that they are not past due or impaired for each of the reporting dates under
review. Mone of the Company’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

The directors considered the credit and counterparty risk as minimal since the
Company's clients are the Company's related companies.

18
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

10, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(¢)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities. The Company's strategy is to
minimise its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the Company's liquid capital from
tirne to time and by obtaining funds from parfners whene necessary,

The follewing table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financal liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within one year equal their
carrying amaounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant, The table alse analyses
the maturity profile of the Company's finandal assets {undiscounted where appropriate)
in order to provide a complete view of the Company's confractual commitments and
liquidity.

Financial liabilities
The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the
ameunt is paid, the liability is allocated tothe earliest period in which the Company can
be reguired to pay.

Financial agsels

The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pericd from the end of
the reporting pericd to the contractual maturity dake or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

On Less than 12 M
demand 3 months manths maturity Total
LD ush uso Ush usp
31 Decermber 2024
Financial labiltes
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 22303 - - - 22 303
22,303 - - = 22,303
On Less than Itei2 Mo
demand 3 months months maturity Total
LD uso uso UsD usD
31 December 2023
Financial liabiltms
Amounts due to the
immediate holding
company 16.752 . . . 16,752
Directors’ fee
payable 428,396 = - - 428,356
445,148 - - - 445 148
19
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11.

UMCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company considers itself the sponsor of 2 structured entity when either its name appears
in the name of the structured entity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation
from the market that the Company is associated with the structured entity o the Company
was involved in the design or set up of the structured enfity and has a form of involvement
with the structured entity.

The below unconsclidated structured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed
annual management fee of USDS5,000 (2023: USDS,000) each is received but no interest is
held by the Company as at 31 December 2024,

Australian High Dividend Equity Twin Alpha Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
US REIT Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Frincipal / CS Canadian Equity Income Fund (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)
Global REIT Triple Premiumn Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)®

US Preferred REIT Income Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)*

Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

MEMNMYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Qualified Instituticnal Investors Cnly)*

Daiwa UK High Dividend Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Inwestors Cnly)®
Brazil Equity Alpha Fund {For Qualified Institutional Imvestors Cnly)

Daiwa Brazitian Real Bond Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Missay Japan Equity Active Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

AMP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Onbky)

J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Cnly)

Daiwa American High Dividend Equity Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Insttutional
Investors Only)

Daiwa American REIT Quattro Income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Shinsel World Wrap Stable Type (For Qualified institutional Investors Only)

US REIT Triple Engine Plus Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

US Municipal Bond Fund

Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund*

Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)
Meister's Collection

PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund

FIMCC Short Term Strategy

Daiwa J-REIT Covered Call Fund {For Qualified Institutional Investors Only)

Foreign Currency Denominated Man AHL Smart Leverage Strategy Fund

SBI PICTET Asia Hi-Tech \Venture Fund

AUD Shart Term Bond Fund

Insight Alpha

US Dynamic Growth

Fremium Camy Strategy Fund

BSMD Glcbal Advantage

Draiwa Wil Ventures lll, L.P. Fund

Japan Equity Premium Strategy Fund

Global Select Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds were terminated during 2024,
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UBS MANAGEMENT (CAYMAM) LIMITED
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited lability)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024

11, UNCOMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The Company has not provided financial or other support to unconsdidated structured
entities that it was not contractually required to provide.

The Company does not currently hawve the intention to provide financial or other support to
unconsolidated structured entities that is not contractually required to provide.

12, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
an 21 May 2025,
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2024 1,341 1,674.44 19 1,210
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Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors™ Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PIMCO Short Term Income Strategy Fund (the ““Series Trust”?), a
series trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) 11l (the ““Trust””), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Series Trust as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (*”1FRS Accounting Standards’”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the ““Auditors ™ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements”” section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (““IESBA Code””) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors™ Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors = Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors® report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

April 29, 2025
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Independent auditor ®s report
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited (the "Company™),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (““IASB”~).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code') issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent auditor *s report (continued)
To the sole member of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
21 May 2025
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